
MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

TEMPORARY CITY HALL 
3928 MONTCLAIR ROAD, SUITE 230 

MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213 

MARCH 11,2013,7:00 P.M. 

1. Approval of the minutes of the February 25,20 13 regular meeting of the City Council. 

2. Consideration: Resolution setting a public hearing for April 8, 2013 at 7 p.m. to consider an 
ordinance amending Section 129-1 92(b) of the City Code to allow veterinarylanimal grooming uses as a 
conditional use in the Local Business district. 

3. Consideration: Resolution authorizing the contract renewal with Waste Management for garbage, trash and 
recycling service. 

4. Consideration: Resolution awarding the bid for 2013 street [relpaving. 

5. Consideration: Resolution authorizing a $340 change order to the Alscan, Inc. contract (Resolution 2012- 
044 dated March 26, 2012) for the purchase of a pedestal mount for the garage access card reader. 

6. Consideration: Resolution accepting an additional 20 feet of right-of-way along Pine Ridge Road at 341 5 
and 3501 Pine Ridge Road as recommended by the Planning Commission with respect to the Thompson 
development. 

7. Public hearing: Consideration of an ordinance amending the PUD development plan for the Lane Parke 
development (Ordinance No. 1871 adopted May 21,201 2). 

8. Announcement: The next regular meeting of the City Council is Monday, March 25,2013, at 7 p.m. 

9. Other business. 

10. Comments from residents. 

1 1. Adjourn. 



Minute Book 85 

MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 
PRE-MEETING DISCUSSION 

FEBRUARY 25,2013 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the temporary City 
Hall at 6:30 p.m. on Monday, the 25th day of February, 2013. The President of the City Council called the 
meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
Amy G. Carter, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
William S. Pritchard I11 
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Absent: Jesse S. Vogtle, Jr. 

Also present were City Attorneys Whit Colvin, City Manager Sam Gaston, and City Clerk Steven Boone. 

1. AGENDA 

1. Contract renewal with Waste Management for garbage, trash, recycling and leaf pick up services for 
2013-2016 -Terry White and Mike Mitchell of Waste Management. (This matter will be considered 
for formal action on March 1 I, 20 13 .) 

2. Open retirement window for eligible City employees - Steven Boone (Resolution No. 2013-37 was 
added to the formal agenda.) 

Other matters discussed and added to the formal agenda include the following: 

3. Application for the issuance of a 240 - Non-Profit Tax Exempt ABC license from The Preschool 
Partners Foundation (trade name The Food Truck Round Up) for its May 4,20 13 Fundraising event to 
be held in the Macy's Department Store parking lot 780 Brookwood Village, Mountain Brook, AL 
(Resolution No. 20 13-03 8). 

4. Approve a change order for landscaping with respect to Phase 6 of the Sidewalk Project with 
stipulation. (Resolution No. 20 13-039.) 

5. Accept professional services proposal from Nimrod Long & Associates with respect to the Safe 
Routes to School sidewalk project (Resolution No. 2013-040). 

6. Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract, Brasfield & Gorrie change order, and/or purchase 
order with respect to  the construction of the 91 1 monument base at the municipal complex (Motion 
NO. 2013-041). 

Steven Boone, City Clerk 

February 11,2013 



Minute Book 85 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

FEBRUARY 25,2013 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the temporary City 
Hall at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, the 25th day of February, 2013. The President of the City Council called the 
meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
Amy G. Carter, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
William S. Pritchard I11 
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Absent: Jesse S. Vogtle, Jr. 

Also present were City Attorneys Whit Colvin, City Manager Sam Gaston, and City Clerk Steven 
Boone. 

The City Council President stated that a quorum was present and that the meeting was open for the 
transaction of business. 

1. RECOGNITION OF GUESTS 

President Smith recognized Ann August and Joyce Brooks, Director and Chairman, respectively, of 
MAX, who addressed the Mayor and members of the City Council. 

2. CONSENT AGENDA 

Council President Smith announced that the following matters will be considered at one time on the 
consent agenda provided no one in attendance objects: 

Approval of the minutes of the February 1 1,20 13 meeting of the City Council. 

Approval of the minutes of the February 20,20 13 special meeting of the City Council. 

2013-029 Participate in the Municipal Workers Compensation Fund Appendix 1 
(MWCF). 

2013-030 MWCF Safety Resolution. Appendix 2 

20 13-03 1 Municipal Workers Compensation Fund 20 13 Statement of Appendix 3 
Commitment. 

2013-032 Appoint Ellen Elsas to serve as a supernumerary member to the Exhibit 1 
Village Design Review Committee, to serve without compensation, 
with this term of office to end February 1,2014. 

2013-033 Appoint James Ernest Grisham, 111, as a regular member to the Exhi bit 2 
Village Design Review Committee, to serve without compensation, 
with the term of office to end April 13,2015. 

20 13-034 Arbor Week Proclamation. Exhibit 3 

February 1 1,20 13 



Minute Book 85 

20 13-035 Approve the conditional use application submitted by Village Exhibit 4, 
Dermatology for their operation of a medical office (service use) in Appendix 4 
the [formerly] Union Carbide building located at 2900 Cahaba 
Road. 

2013-037 Authorize the City Manager to offer continuing medical coverage Exhibit 5, 
to eligible employees (namely 20 years of City service at any age Appendix 5 
or 10 years of City service for ages 60 and over) who elect to retire 
between April 1,20 13 and November 1,20 13. 

2013-038 Recommend to the ABC Board the issuance of a 240 - Non-Profit Exhibit 6, 
Tax Exempt license to The Preschool Partners Foundation (trade Appendix 6 
name The Food Truck Round Up) for its May 4,2013 Fundraising 
event to be held in the Macy's Department Store parking lot 780 
Brookwood Village, Mountain Brook, AL. 

2013-039 Accept change order number 3 for additional work (landscaping) to Exhibit 7, 
be provided by Walker Patton Company, Inc. with respect to the Appendix 7 
Phase 6 sidewalk project (Appendix A attached hereto) for 
consideration of $9,507.12 with the stipulation that the previously 
priced transplanting of [formerly existing] Leyland Cypress trees is 
deleted for a savings of $4,500 resulting in a net cost of $5,007.12. 

20 13-040 Accept the professional services proposal submitted by Nimrod Exhibit 8, 
Long & Associates for additional design services with respect to Appendix 8 
the change in scope of the Safe Routes to Schools sidewalk 
projects for consideration in the amount of $7,850 based on the 
estimated time required for such services. 

201 3-041 Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract, Brasfield & 
Motion Gorrie change order, andlor a purchase order with respect to the 

City's engagement of Stolisma, Inc. (Shea Scully) to design and 
construct the 9 1 1 monument base for the municipal complex 
(subject to review by the City Attorney). 

Thereupon, the foregoing minutes, resolutions and motion were introduced by Council President 
Smith and their immediate adoption was moved by Council member Carter. The minutes, resolutions and 
motion were then considered by the Council. Council member Pritchard seconded the motion to adopt the 
foregoing minutes, resolutions and motion. Council member Pritchard then announced that he will abstain 
from voting with respect to Resolution No. 2013-040. Then, upon the question being put and the roll called, 
the vote was recorded as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
Amy G. Carter, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
William S. Pritchard I11 (abstained from voting on Motion No. 2013-040) 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith thereupon declared that said minutes, resolutions, and motion (nos. 2013-029 
through 201 3-035,20 13-037 through 20 13-039, and 201 3-04 1) are adopted by a vote of 4-0, and that 
Resolution No. 2013-040 is adopted by a vote of 3 -0  and as evidence thereof she signed the same. 

February 11,2013 



3 62 Minute Book 85 

3. PUBLIC HEARING: RESOLUTION (NO. 2013-036) APPROVING AND FINALIZING THE 
COSTS OF DEMOLITION AND ABATING THE PUBLIC NUISANCE AT 2210 
STERLINGWOOD DRIVE, DEMANDING PAYMENT OF CITY'SCOSTS OF 
ABATEMENT, AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO INITIATE 
PROCEEDINGS TO PERFECT A LIEN AGAINST SAID PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS LOT 
8, SURVEY OF STERLINGWOOD, AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 173 AT PAGE 87 IN 
THE UPROBATE OFFICE OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, ALABAMA (EXHIBIT 9) 

Council President Smith introduced the resolution in writing and invited comments and questions 
from the audience. There being no discussion or comments, Council member Pritchard made a motion that the 
resolution be adopted as introduced. The motion was seconded by Council President Smith and was carried, 
as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
Amy Carter, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
William S. Pritchard I11 

Nays: None 

The President of the Council declared the motion carried by a vote of 4 4 .  

4. ANNOUNCEMENT REGARDING THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL 

Council President Smith announced that the next meeting of the Mountain Brook City Council will be 
held on Monday, March 11,2013 at the [temporary] Mountain Brook City Hall located at 3928 Montclair 
Road, Suite 230, Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213. Please visit the City's web site (www.mtnbrook.org) for 
more information. 

5. EXECUTIVE SESSION AND ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the City Council, it was moved by Council member 
Pritchard that the City Council convenes in executive session to discuss a matter involving a legal settlement 
andlor pending litigation. The motion was seconded by Council President Smith. The City Attorney certified 
that the subject of said executive session was allowed pursuant to the Open Meetings Act. Then, upon the 
question being put and the roll called, the vote was recorded as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
Amy Carter, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
William S. Pritchard I11 

Nays: None 

President Smith declared that the motion carried by a vote of 4-0 and then asked that the members of 
the audience be excused. President Smith also announced that the City Council will adjourn upon conclusion 
of the executive session. 

Steven Boone, City Clerk 

February 11,2013 



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-042 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook that, at the meeting of 
the City Council to be held on Monday, April 8,2013, at 7:00 p.m., in the [temporary] Council Chamber 
of the Mountain Brook City Hall, the City Council will hold a public hearing regarding the adoption of an 
ordinance amending Section 129-192(b) of the City Code to allow veterinarylanimal grooming uses as a 
conditional use in the Local Business district. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook that the 
City Clerk be, and he hereby is, authorized and directed to cause to be published not fewer than twenty- 
two (22) days prior to April 8,2013, by posting in five (5) conspicuous places within the City of 
Mountain Brook, as follows: City Hall - 3928 Montclair Road, Gilchrist Drug Company - 2805 Cahaba 
Road, Joe Muggs Newsstand - 2037 Cahaba Road, Piggly Wiggly Food Store 4 - 93 Euclid Avenue, and 
The Invitation Place - 3 150 Overton Road notices of said public hearing in words and figures 
substantially as follows: 

"NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

PROPOSED ZONING CODE NOTICE 

Notice is hereby given that at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Mountain 
Brook to be held on Monday, April 8,2013, at 7:00 p.m., in the temporary Council Chamber of the 
Mountain Brook City Hall located at 3928 Montclair Road, Suite 230, Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213, 
the City Council will hold a public hearing regarding a proposal that the City Council adopt an ordinance 
in words and figures substantially as follows: 

'ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 129-192(b) OF THE CITY CODE 
TO ALLOW VETERINARYIANIMAL GROOMING USES AS A 

CONDITIONAL USE IN THE LOCAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, 
that Section 129-192(b) of the City Code is hereby amended to include subsection (9) as follows: 

1. Section 129-192(b). Conditional uses. 

"(9) Veterinary ClinicslPet Grooming, provided that there be no outdoor runs, and that business 
be conducted wholly within a building; boarding only as required for surgical procedures. 
Conditional review and approval shall ensure compatibility with the surrounding commercial and 
residential uses; soundproofing of walls may be required." 

2. Repealer. All ordinances or parts of ordinances heretofore adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that are inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby 
expressly repealed. 

3. Severabilitv. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held unconstitutional 
or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the remainder of this 
ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding such holding. 



4. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 
publication as provided by law.' 

At the aforesaid time and place, all interested parties will be heard in relation to the changes 
proposed by said ordinance." 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk be, and he hereby is, further authorized and 
directed to give written notice of the hearing to the owners of the property located in whole or in part 
within 500 feet from the boundaries of the property described in this resolution in the form and manner 
and within the time required by Act No. 1123 of the 1973 Regular Session of the Legislature of Alabama. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk be, and he hereby is, further authorized and 
directed to publish one insertion of the Notice herein above set out, which includes the proposed 
ordinance, one time, not less than twenty-two days prior to the public hearing provided for therein, in The 
Birmingham News, a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Mountain Brook, and one week after 
such first insertion to cause to be published again in said newspaper a synopsis of said proposed 
ordinance in lieu of a full copy of the same, which synopsis shall refer to the date and name of the 
newspaper in which the proposed ordinance was published in full. 

ADOPTED: This 1 1 th day of March, 20 13. 

Virginia Smith, Council President 

APPROVED: This 1 1 th day of March, 20 13. 

Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I ,  Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its meeting held on March 11,2013, as same appears in the minutes or record of said meeting. 

I further certify that copies of the resolution above were posted on M a r c h ,  2013 in five (5) 
conspicuous places within the City of Mountain Brook, as follows: 

City Hall, 3928 Montclair Road, Suite 138 Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2805 Cahaba Road 
Joe Muggs Newsstand, 2037 Cahaba Road Piggly Wiggly, 93 Euclid Avenue 
The Invitation Place, 3 150 Overton Road 

Steven Boone, City Clerk 



RIESOLUTION NO. 13-043 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama ("the 
City"), as follows: 

1. That in accordance with applicable provisions of law and Section 3B of the 
contract between the City and Waste Management, Inc. ("Contractor") dated September 4, 1998 
("the Contract"), the term of the Contract shall be extended for three years from the current date 
of expiration (September 30,20 13) to September 30,20 16; 

2. That the terms and conditions of the Contract shall remain in effect for the term 
of the extension hereby approved, as further set forth in correspondence dated February 15,201 3, 
from Michael P. Mitchell, Public Sector, to Mountain Brook City Manager Sam Gaston, which 
correspondence is incorporated herein by reference. 

3. That the mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute such contractual 
documents or instruments as may be necessary and appropriate to give effect to this resolution. 

ADOPTED: This 1 lnd day of March, 2013. 

APPROVED: This 1 1 nd day of March, 20 13. 
Virginia C. Smith, Council President 

Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on March 11,2013, as same appears in the minutes of 
record of said meeting. 

Steven Boone, City Clerk 

Waste Management 



WASTE MANAGEMENT 

700 Clow Road 
Birmingham, AL 35217 

February 15, 2013 

Sam Gaston 
City Manager 
City of Mountain Brook 
P.O. Box 130009 
Mountain Brook, AL 35213 

Dear Mr. Gaston: 

This confirms the offer of Waste Away Group, Inc. to renew its existing contract with the 
City of Mountain Brook, AL for residential refuse collection. The contract includes, in 
addition to household garbage, specified leaf collection, curbside trashldebris and 
recycling. 

This renewal is pursuant to the terms of the parties' original contract. The renewal term 
will begin October 1,20 13 and end September 30,20 16. Consistent with that agreement, 
Waste Away will offer this service for the fiscal year October 1,2013 to September 30, 
2014 at its current rate, plus 80% of the change in the applicable Consumer Price Index 
(CPI) fkom 20 12 to 20 13, all as specified in the agreement. We will make the CPI 
calculation as soon as data is available. 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide Mountain Brook's residential collection service. 
b e  look forward to continuing this mutually beneficial business relationship. If you have 
any questions, please call me at 205- 808-5 147. 

Sincerely, 

Michael P. Mitchell 
Public Sector 
Waste Management 

From everyday collection to environmental protection, Think Green? Think Waste Management. 
@ Phntrd pr lOML pl.mn~urnn rrndrdpapr 



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-044 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the street 
resurfacing bid submitted by Dunn Construction Company, Inc. being the lowest qualified bid is hereby 
accepted and that the Mayor or City Manager of the City is hereby authorized and directed, for and on 
behalf of the City, to enter into a contract with Dunn Construction Company, Inc., for said street 
resurfacing (Project MI 0 1-20 13) as described below: 

Estimated Unit 
Ouantitv - Unit Bid Price Amount 

Asphalt Milling 7,690 Ton $ 22.75 $174,947.50 

Adjusting Manholes 15 Each $150.00 $ 2,250.00 

Bituminous Tact Coat 6,500 Gallon $ 3.45 $22,425.00 

Leveling Course 
Baby Binder 200 Ton $88.00 $ 17,600.00 

Slag Seal 
Wearing Course 6,922 Ton $ 82.00 $567,604.00 

Poly modified open graded 
friction course mix NI A Ton N/A $ 0.00 

BID AMOUNT 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, 
that the City Council hereby authorizes the execution of a contract, in the form as attached hereto as 
Exhibit A subject to such minor modifications that may be determined appropriate by the City Attorney, 
with respect to said street resurfacing project. 

ADOPTED: This 1 1 th day of March, 201 3. 

Virginia Smith, Council President 

APPROVED: This 1 1 th day of March, 20 13. 

Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steve Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain 
Brook at its regular meeting held on March 1 1,2013, as same appears in the minutes of record of said 
meeting. 

Steven Boone, City Clerk 

Street Resurfacing Bid Award 2013-044 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 
STREET IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT NO, MI01-2013 

TOT& AMOUNT ; BID: $ 784,826.50' 

ITEM # 

1.05 

2.0 1 

3.01 

5.01 

5.02 

1L 
TRAFFIC CONTROL IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF CONTRACTOR. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 
8 

DESCRIPTION 

ASPHALT MILIaING 

ADJUSTING MANI-IOLES 

BITUMINOUS 
TACT COA'~  

L,;VEI..ING COUIiSE 
BABY BINDER 

- 
SLAG SEAL 

WEARING COIJRSE 

UNIT 

TON 

EACH 

GALLON 

'TON 

'TON 

ESTIMATED 
QUANTITY 

7,690 

15 

6,500 

200 

6,922 

UNIT BID 
PRICE 

$22.75 

$150.00 

$3.45 

$88.00 

$82.00 -- 

AMOUNT 

- 
(174,947.50 

$2,250.OC 

. -* 

$22,425.( 

$17,600.00 

$567,604 
I 

. I  

1 

s 
8 .  

. 
0 

.OO 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 
STREET IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT NO. MI01-2013 

TOTAL AMOUNT BID: $ 
/ 

ITEM # 

1.05 

2.0 1 

- 
3.01 

5.01 

5.02 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 
8 

DESCRIPTION 

ASPHALT MILLING 

ADJUSTING MANHOLES 

BITUMINOUS 
TACT COAT 

LEVELING COURSE 
BABY BINDER 

SLAG SEAL 
WEARING COURSE 

UNIT 

TON 

EACH 

GALLON 

TON 

TON 

ESTIMATED 
QUANTITY 

7,690 

15 

6,500 

200 

6,922 

UNIT BID 
PRICE 

30 

~ s p  

ye 

/f2 'a'/ 

97°C 

AMOUNT 

~ J ~ , K Y J - ~ '  
I 

373be 

14 m--' 

~ B O J ~  

&I/&' 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 
STREET IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT NO. MI01-2013 

AMOUNT 

TOTAL AMOUNT BID: $ /. 03q - ')FA. 88 

ITEM # 

1.05 

2.01 

3.01 

5.01 

5.02 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 
8 

UNIT 

TON 

EACH 

GALLON 

TON 

TON 

DESCRIPTION 

ASPHALT MILLING 

ADJUSTING MANHOLES 

BITUMINOUS 
TACT COAT 

LEVELING COURSE 
BABY BINDER 

SLAG SEAL 
WEARING COURSE 

ESTIMATED 
QUANTITY 

7,690 

l5  

6,500 

200 

6,922 

UNIT BID 
PRICE 

47 '86  

/3Ied+ 

3144 

1 / 0 8  %5 

/\1.'54' 



CONTRACT 

March 

THIS CONTRACT, MADE AND ENTERED INTO THlS THE llth DAY OF, 2013, BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
MOUNTAIN BROOK, HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS THE OWNER AND, Construction Inc. 

HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS THE CONTRACTOR. 

WITNESSETH: 

THAT THE PARTIES HERETO DO MUTUALLY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

I. THE CONTRACTOR WlLL FURNISH ALL MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES, TOOLS, POWER, FUEL, AND 
SERVICES AND PERFORM ALL LABOR NECESSARY FOR M101-2013 AND WILL CONSTRUCT SAME IN STRICT 
CONFORMITY WlTH THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SET FORTH IN THE FOLLOWING NAMED DOCUMENTS WHICH ARE 
HERETO ATTACHED AND MADE A PART OF THlS CONTRACT: 

PROJECT NO. MI 01 -2013: NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS, GENERAL CONDITIONS, 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS, SPECIFICATIONS, BID PROPOSAL, PERFORMANCE BOND, LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND, 
CONTRACT PLANS AS ENUMERATED AND IDENTIFIED IN THE SPECIFICATIONS; AND COPY OF RESOLUTION OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK ACCEPTING THE BID. 

2. THE OWNER WlLL PAY TO THE CONTRACTOR, ON FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE OF HIS UNDERTAKINGS 
HEREUNDER, IN LAWFUL MONEY OF THE UNITED STATES, THE RESPECTIVE UNlT PRICES SET FORTH IN THE 
AFOREMENTIONED BID PROPOSAL FOR EACH UNlT OF WORK PERFORMED OR INSTALLED BY THE CONTRACTOR. 

3. THE OWNER WlLL MAKE PAYMENTS TO THE CONTRACTOR AS SPECIFIED IN PARAGRAPH 8 OF THE GENERAL 
CONDITIONS. 

4. WITHIN A PERIOD OF 30 DAYS AFTER COMPLETION OF THE WORK THE OWNER WlLL MAKE A FINAL AND 
COMPLETE PAYMENT IN FULL TO THE CONTRACTOR ON ACCOUNT OF THlS CONTRACT; PROVIDED THAT, DURING 
SAID 30 DAY PERIOD, THE CONTRACTOR HAS SUBMllTED TO THE OWNER SATISFACTORY WRITTEN EVIDENCE 
THAT ALL PAYROLLS AND OTHER COSTS INCURRED BY THE CONTRACTOR IN CONNECTION WlTH THE WORK HAVE 
BEEN PAID IN FULL AND NOTICE OF COMPLETION PUBLISHED AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 16, TITLE 50, CODE OF 
ALABAMA OF 1940; OTHERWISE FINAL PAYMENT WlLL BE MADE ONLY AFTER SUCH EVIDENCE HAS BEEN 
SUBMITTED. 

5. THE CONTRACTOR WlLL COMMENCE THE WORK ON OR AS OF THE DATE SET IN A NOTICE FROM THE OWNER 
TO PROCEED WlTH THE WORK, WlLL PROSECUTE SAME DILIGENTLY AND CONTINUOUSLY UNTIL COMPLETED, AND 
WlLL COMPLETE SAME IN CONFORMITY WlTH THE STATED REQUIREMENTS WITHIN 45 CONSECUTIVE CALENDAR 
DAYS. SHOULD THE WORK OR ANY SEPARATE PART THEREOF BE NOT COMPLETED BY SUCH TIME OR DATE, THEN 
THE CONTRACTOR WlLL PAY TO THE OWNER AS FIXED, AGREED AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES THE SUM 
STIPULATED IN PARAGRAPH 4 (A) OF THE SPECIAL CONDITIONS. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, PARTIES HAVE EXECUTED THlS CONTRACT ON THE DAY AND DATE FIRST ABOVE WRITTEN IN 3 
ORIGINAL COUNTERPARTS. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

BY: 
MAYOR Lawrence T. Oden 

ATTEST: 

BY: 

TITLE: CITY CLERK 

ATTEST: BY: 

TITLE : 

SECRETARY 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY OF CONTRACTOR: 

1, , CERTIFY THAT 1 AM THE SECRETARY OF THE CORPORATION NAMED AS CONTRACTOR 
HEREIN; THAT , WHO SIGNED THIS CONTRACT ON BEHALF OF THE CONTRACTOR, WAS THEN 

OF SAlD CORPORATION; THAT SAID CONTRACT WAS DULY SIGNED FOR AND ON BEHALF OF SAID 
CORPORATION BY AUTHORITY OF ITS GOVERNING BODY AND IS WITHIN THE SCOPE OF ITS CORPORATE POWERS. 

SECRETARY 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



PERFORMANCE BOND 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, hereinafter called the Principal, and, hereinafter called the Surety, 
are held and firmly bound unto the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, in the penal sum of seven hundred e i g h t y - f o u r  

thousand, e i g h t  hundred twenty-six($), for payment of which we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, 

and 50,100 
and assigns for the faithful performance of a certain written contract, dated the 0 3 / 1 1  day of, 2013 entered into 
between the Principal and the Owner for the construction of the following: 

d o l l a r s  ($784,826.50)  

PROJECT NO. MI 01-2013 

A copy of which contract is incorporated herein by reference and is made a part hereof as if fully copied herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the condition of this obligation is such that if the Principal shall faithfully perform the terms 
and conditions of the contract in all respects on his or their part, and shall fully pay all obligations incurred in 
connection with the performance of such contract on account of labor and materials used in connection therewith, 
and all such other obligations of every form, nature and character, and shall save harmless the Owner from all 

and any liability of every nature, kind and character which may be incurred in connection with the performance or 
fulfillment of such contract or other such liability resulting from negligence or otherwise on the part of such Principal, 
and further shall save harmless the Owner from all costs and damage which may be suffered by reason of the 
failure to fully and completely perform said contract and shall fully reimburse and repay the Owner for all 
expenditures of every kind, character and description which may be incurred by the Owner in making good any and 
every default which may exist on the part of the Principal in connection with the performance of said contract; and 
further that the Principal shall pay all lawful claims of all persons, firms, partnerships or corporations for all labor 
performed and materials furnished in connection with the performance of the contract, and that failure so to do 
with such persons, firms, partnerships or corporations shall give them a direct right of action against the Principal 
and Surety under this obligation and provided however, that no suit, action or proceeding by reason of any 
default whatever shall be brought on this bond after one (1) year from the date on which the final payment on the 
contract falls due; and provided further that any alterations or additions which may be made under the contract, 
or in the work to be done under it, or the giving by the Owner of any extension of time for the performance of the 
contract or any other forbearance on the part of either the Owner or the Principal shall not in any way release the 
Principal and Surety, or either of them, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns from their 
liability hereunder; notice to the Surety of any such alterations, extensions or forbearance being expressly waived. 

This obligation shall remain in full force and effect until the performance of all covenants, terms and conditions 
herein stipulated, and after such performance it shall be null and void. 
Executed in 3 original counterparts. 

March 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF witness the hands and seals of the parties hereto on the d a y  of, 2013. 

(Signature of Principal) 

TITLE: 

WITNESS: 

TITLE: 
Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



COUNTERSIGNED: 

BY: 

TITLE: 

(Signature of Surety) 

BY: 

TITLE: 

WITNESS: 

BY: 

TITLE: 

COUNTERSIGNED: 

BY: 

TITLE: 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, hereinafter called the Principal, 
and hereinafter called the Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the CITY OF seven hundred 

MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA, hereinafter called the Obligee, in the penal sum of eighty-four 
eight hundred twenty-six and 50/100 dollars ($784,826.50 ) lawful money of the United 

thousand 
States, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our 
heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns jointly and severally, firmly by 
these presents. 

WHEREAS, said Principal has entered into a certain contract with said Obligee dated 
the 03/11 day of, 2013, for Street Improvements designated as M101-2013 which 
contract and the plans and specifications for said work shall be deemed a part thereof 
as fully as if set out herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH that if said 
Principal and all subcontractors to whom any portion of the work provided for in said 
contract is sublet and all assignees of said Principal and of such subcontractors 
shall promptly make payments to all persons supplying him or them with labor, 
materials, equipment or supplies for or in the prosecution provided for in such 
Contract, or in any amendment or extension of or addition to said Contract, and for 
the payment of reasonable attorney's fees, incurred by the claimant or claimants in 
suits of said bonds, then the above obligations shall be void; otherwise to remain in full 
force and effect. Provided, however, that this bond is subject to the following conditions 
and limitations. 

(a) Any person, firm or corporation that has furnished labor, materials, equipment or 
supplies for or in the prosecution of the work provided for in said contract shall have a 
direct right of action against the Principal and Surety on this bond, which right of action 
shall be asserted in a proceeding, instituted in the county in which said Principal or 
Surety does business. Such right of action shall be asserted in a proceeding instituted 
in the name of the claimant or claimants for his or their use and benefit if against said 
Principal and Surety or either of them (but not later than one year after the final 
settlement of said Contract) in which action such claims or claim shall be adjudicated 
and judgment rendered thereon. 

(b) The Principal and Surety hereby designate and appoint Mayor Lawrence Oden, as 
the Agent of each of them to receive and accept services or process or other pleading 
issued or filed in any proceeding instituted on this bond and hereby consent that such 
services shall be the same as personal service on the Principal andlor Surety. 

(c) The Surety shall not be liable hereunder for any damages or compensation 
recoverable under Workmen's Compensation or Employers Liability Statute. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



(d) In no event shall Surety be liable for a greater sum than the penalty of this bond or 
subject to any suit, action or proceeding thereof that is instituted later than one year 
after the final settlement of said contract. 

(e) This bond shall be construed so as to comply with the requirements of Section 16, 
Title 50, and Code of Alabama of 1940. 

SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED this - day of, 20 13, in 3 original counterparts. 

(Signature of Principal) 

WI?T\JESS: BY: 

TITLE: 

(Signature of Surety) 

WITNESS: BY: 

TITLE: 

COUNTERSIGNED: 

BY: 
RESIDENT AGENT 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

1. DESCRIPTION OF WORK: 

(a) The work to be done consists of milling and resurfacing of streets selected by the City. 
(b) The milling of asphalt shall be performed in a manner that will produce a smooth riding 

surface. The depth of milling will be determined by the City Engineer. The material 
produced by the milling of streets will be recycled as a Binder Course that meets the 
Binder Course specifications as provided in Section V. if the Contractor chooses to do 
SO. 

(c) Under no circumstances can any milled material be left overnight in the streets or gutter. 
(d) The following streets ..................... MILL FULL WIDTH OF ALL STRETS. 

Milling will be full width, approximately 1 % inches 

1 B. Traffic Control: 
All traffic control shall be the responsibility of the contractor, including signs and flag 
persons. 

2. CONTRACT PLANS: 
(a) The work shall be performed in accordance with these specifications where 

directed by the City and utilizing the approximate quantities of materials shown on 
Page 8 of the contract portion of these specifications. The City, however, reserves 
the right to increase or decrease the quantities estimated without penalty or change of 
unit prices bid. 

3. DATE OF COMPLETION: 

(a) The Contractor shall start to work on the date set by the Owner in a written notice to proceed 
(work order) as outlined in Paragraph 7.2 (a) of the General conditions, and shall completely 
finish all work within the specified number of calendar days and subject to allowable delays 
as stated in Paragraph 7.7 (a) of the General Conditions: 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



STREET IMPROVEMENTS - 90 CALENDAR DAYS 

4. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES: 

(a) Liquidated damages, as specified in Paragraph 7.8(a) of the General Conditions, are hereby 
mutually fixed and agreed upon at the rate of $500.00 per calendar day of delay in completing 
the work. 

5. All new surfaces shall be tapered to meet the existing gutter line to the maximum extent 
possible without structurally weakening the new surface. 

6. ONE YEAR WARRANTY: 

(a) General Warranty for One Year After Completion of Contract: For a period of at least one 
year after the completion of the contract, the Contractor warrants the fitness and soundness of all 
work done and materials and equipment put in place under the contract and neither the final 
certificate of payment nor any provision in the contract documents nor partial or entire 
occupancy of the premises by the Owner shall constitute an acceptance of work not done 
in accordance with the contract documents or relieve the Contractor of liability in respect to 
any express warranties or responsibility for faulty materials or workmanship. The contractor 
shall remedy any defects in the work and pay for any damage to other work resulting there from, 
which shall appear within a period of one year from the date of final acceptance of the work 
unless a longer period is specified. The Owner will give notice of observed defects with 
reasonable promptness. The accepted date of the beginning of the one-year warranty shall 
be the date of final estimate payment to the Contractor by the Owner or Engineer. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



SECTION VII 
GENERAL CONDITIONS 
DEFINITIONS OF TERMS 

1.1 DEFINITIONS: 

Wherever the words, forms or phrases defined or pronouns used in their stead, occur in these 
specifications, in the contract or in the advertisement or any document, or instrument herein 
contemplated or to which these specifications apply, the intent and meaning shall be construed 
and interpreted as follows: 

Addenda: Any change in specifications after advertisements for bids will be made by addenda 
to specifications, with appropriate supplemental plans. After issuance, any addenda shall 
become a part of the specifications, as much as though fully contained therein. 

Bidder: Any individual, firm or corporation submitting a bid or proposal for the work 
contemplated. 

Construction Bonds or Performance Bonds: The approved form of security furnished by the 
contractor and his surety as a guarantee of good faith on the part of the contractor to 

execute the work in accordance with the Plans, Specifications and Terms of the Contract. 

Contract: The written agreement between the Owner and the Contractor covering the 
performance of the work. The contract includes the Advertisement (Notice to Contractors), 
Proposal, General Conditions, Special conditions, Detailed Specifications, Contract 
Agreement, Construction Bonds, Plans, and all approved Addenda and Change Orders 
thereto. 

Engineer: The engineer selected by the owner for the performance of all engineering services in 
connection with the design and construction of the work, and his duly authorized 
representatives. 

Owner: The corporate or other legally constituted body designate in the contract as the owner of 
the completed work and as a party to the contract, and his duly authorized representatives. 

Contractor: The individual, firm or corporation selected by the owner as the successful bidder 
who has become a party to the Contract, and his duly authorized representatives. 

Plans: All plans, drawings and maps identified in the special conditions as contract plans, 
together with all approved revisions or additions thereto. 

Proposal: The written and signed statement which includes the completed proposal form duly 
filed with the owner by the person or persons, partnership, company, firm, or corporation 
proposing to do the work contemplated. 

Proposal Form: The form furnished by the engineer on whom the formal bids for the work are to 
be prepared and submitted. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



Specifications: The directions, provisions and requirements contained herein pertaining to the 
method and manner of performing the work or to the quantities or qualities of materials to be 
furnished under the contract. 

Surety or Sureties: The corporate body which is bound by such bonds as are required with 
and for the Contractor, and engages to be responsible for the entire and satisfactory fulfillment 
of the Contract and for any and all requirements as set out in the Specifications, Contract or 
plans. 

"THE WORK or "THE PROJECT": The work or project, including the furnishing of all labor, 
materials, tools, equipment and incidentals, necessary or required to complete the 

improvement in conformity with the directions, provisions and requirements of the 
Specifications, limitations and conditions of the Contract and in accordance with the intent of 
the Plans. 

AWWA: American Water Works Association 

ASTM: American Society for Testing Materials 

ASA: American Standards Association 

NEMA: National Electric Manufacture's Association 

2.1 PROPOSAL FORM: 

The Engineer will furnish bidders with Proposal Forms which will contain a list of the items of 
work to be done or materials to be furnished and upon which bid prices are asked. 

2.2 INTERPRETATION OF ESTIMATE: 

The quantities of the work and materials shown on the Proposal form or on the Plans are 
believed to approximately represent the work to be performed and materials to be furnished 
and are to be used for comparison of bids. Payment to the Contractor will be made only for 
the actual quantities of work performed or materials furnished in accordance with the Plans and 
Specifications and it is understood that the quantities may be increased or decreased as 
hereinafter provided without in any way invalidating the bid prices. 

2.3 EXAMINATION OF DOCUMENTS AND SITE OF THE WORK: 

Bidders are advised that the plans, specifications, estimates and addenda of the engineer shall 
constitute all the information which the owner will furnish. No other information given by the 
owner or representative thereof, prior to the execution of the contract shall become a part of 
or change the contract, plans, specifications or estimates or be binding upon the owner. 
Bidders are required, prior to submitting a proposal, to read carefully the specifications, the 
proposal, contract and bond forms; to examine the plans; to visit the site of the work; to 
examine carefully local conditions; to inform themselves by their independent research of 
the difficulties to be encountered and judge for themselves of the accessibility of the work 
and all attending circumstances affecting the cost of doing the work or the time required for 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



its completion and obtain all information required to make an intelligent proposal. Bidders 
shall rely exclusively upon their own estimates, investigation and other data which are 
necessary for full and complete information upon which the proposal may be based. It is 
mutually agreed that submission of the proposal will be evidence that the bidder has made the 
examination and investigations required herein. 

2.4 PREPARATION OF PROPOSAL: 

The bidder shall submit his proposal on the forms furnished by the engineer. Each item for 
which a quantity of work is shown shall show a unit price, and each item shall be correctly 
extended and summarized. Should there develop a discrepancy between the unit price and the 
extended amount shall be corrected. The proposal must be properly signed, with the name and 
address of the firm, corporation or individual bidder clearly shown in the space provided. For a 
corporation the title of the official signing the proposal and the state in which the corporation was 
chartered must be shown, and the corporation seal affixed and attested by the secretary. 

2.5 PROPOSAL GUARANTY: 

Each bidder must submit with his proposal a certified check made payable to the owner or a 
bid bond made by a company qualified and authorized to transact business in the state in 
which the proposed work is located, in an amount not less than five percent (5%) of the total 
amount of his proposal as a guaranty that, if awarded a contract, the bidder will execute the 
required contract and furnish the required construction bonds (surety bonds) within ten (1 0) 
days after date of notice of such award. 

2.6 FILING OF PROPOSAL: 

Each proposal must be filed in a sealed envelope with the owner within the time limit for 
receiving proposals as stated in the advertisement and shall be made on the proposal form 
attached to the other contract documents. The envelope containing the proposal and other 
contract documents shall contain the name of the project, name and address of the bidder, 

and the bidder's license number and date of latest license renewal; otherwise the bid will not 
be opened. Proposals filed after the scheduled date and hour of opening proposals will be 
returned to the sender unopened. 

2.7 WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSALS: 

A proposal may be withdrawn, modified or amended at any time prior to the scheduled date 
and hour of opening proposals by submitting to the owner a written statement setting forth 

the nature of the desired modification or the reason for withdrawal. 

2.8 OPENING OF PROPOSALS: 

The proposals filed with the owner will be opened and publicly read at the time and place stated 
in the advertisement. Bidders are invited to be present. Proposals filed in proper order and 
accepted by the owner for consideration and canvass and which have been opened and read 
may not be withdrawn for a period of 60 days after date of opening. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



2.9 IRREGULAR PROPOSALS: 

Proposals will be considered irregular if they show any omissions, alterations of forms, 
additions or conditions not called for, or irregularities of any kind. However, the Owner 
reserves the right to waive technicalities and make the award in the best interest of the owner 

2.10 REJECTION OF PROPOSALS: 

The owner reserves the right to reject any or all proposals. 

2.1 1 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS: 

Any bidder using the same or different names for submitting more than one proposal for the 
work will be disqualified for further consideration on the work. 

AWARD AND EXECUTION OF CONTRACT 

3.1 CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSALS: 

After the proposals are opened and read, the owner will check and tabulate all proposals and 
such tabulations shall be made public. Until the final award of the contract, the owner reserves 
the right to reject any or all proposals; to waive technicalities and to advertise for new proposals. 

3.2 AWARD OF CONTRACT: 

(a) The owner will award the contract or reject all proposals received within 60 days after date of 
opening proposals. 

(b) The award of the contract, if made, shall be to the lowest responsible bidder whose proposal 
complies with the requirements of the owner. 

(c) before an award is made, the owner reserves the right to investigate the previous 
experience, financial status, and general reputation of the three (3) lowest bidders. 

3.3 RETURN OF PROPOSAL GUARANTY: 

As soon as the proposals have been compared, the owner may, at its discretion, return the 
proposal guaranties accompanying those proposals which in its judgment would not be 
considered in making the award. After the award is made, only the successful bidder's proposal 
guaranty will be retained until the required contract and bonds have been executed, after which 
it will be returned to the bidder. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



3.4 CONSTRUCTION (SURETY) BONDS: 

With the execution and delivery of the contract, the contractor shall furnish to the owner a 
performance bond and a labor and materials bond for the total amount of the contract as 
security for faithful performance of the contract and for the payment of all persons performing 
labor and furnishing material under the contract. Maintenance provisions of the bonds shall 

remain in effect for twelve (1 2) months after completion of the work. The bonds shall be in a 
form satisfactory to the owner. The surety shall be a reputable bonding company authorized to 
transact business in the state in which the work is located and shall be acceptable to the owner. 

3.5 EXECUTION OF CONTRACT: 

The contract shall be executed by the successful bidder and returned to the owner with 
acceptable construction bonds within ten days after the date of notice of award by the owner. 
The contract, bonds and other documents shall be approved by the owner's attorney, if 

required, before execution and acceptance by the owner. 

3.6 FAILURE TO EXECUTE CONTRACT: 

Should the successful bidder to whom the contract has been awarded fail to execute the 
contract and furnish satisfactory construction (surety) bonds within ten days after date of notice 
award, it shall be considered that he has abandoned his proposal; the tender of contract shall 
be withdrawn; and the amount of the proposal guaranty shall be forfeited to the owner as fixed 
and agreed liquidated damages. The filing of a proposal by any bidder shall be considered 
as an acceptance by him of this provision. 

SCOPE OF WORK 

4.1 Intent of Plans and Specifications: 

The intent of the plans and specifications is to prescribe a complete work which the contractor 
undertakes to do in full compliance with the contract. The contractor shall do all work as 
provided in the plans, specifications and other parts of the contract and shall do such 
additional, extra and incidental work as may be considered necessary to complete the work in 
a satisfactory and acceptable manner. Any work or material not shown on the plans or 
described in the specifications but which may be fairly implied as included in any item of the 
contract shall be performed andlor furnished by the contractor without additional charge 
thereof. The contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals 
necessary to the prosecution of the work. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



4.2 Increase or Decrease of Quantities: 

The owner reserves the right to alter the quantities of work to be performed or to extend or 
shorten the improvement at any time, when and as found necessaryand the contractor 
shall perform the work as altered, increased or decreased at the contract unit prices. No 
allowance will be made for any change in anticipated profits nor shall such changes be 
considered as waiving or invalidating any conditions or provisions of the contract. 

4.3. Alterations of Plans and Specifications: 

The owner reserves the right, at any time, to make such changes in the plans and the 
character of the work as may be necessary or desirable to insure completion in the most 
satisfactory manner, provided such changes do not materially alter the original plans and 
specifications or change the general nature of the work as a whole. Such changes shall not 
be considered as waiving or invalidating any condition or provision of the contract. 

4.4 Extra Work: 

When any work is necessary to the proper completion of the project for which no prices 
are provided in the proposal or contract, the contractor shall do such work, but only when 
and as ordered by the engineer. Payment for the extra work will be made as hereinafter 
provided. 

4.5 Cleaning Up: 

(a) Throughout the progress of the work the contractor shall keep the construction area, 
including storage areas used by him, free from accumulation of waste material or rubbish and 
shall keep his materials and equipment in a neat and orderly manner. Immediately upon 
completion of any section of the work and before payment therefore has been made, he shall 
remove from the site all construction equipment, temporary structures, and debris and shall 
restore the site to a neat, workmanlike condition. Waste material shall be disposed of at 
locations satisfactory to the engineer. 

(b) Where the contractor has performed work on, or has made use of, private property for 
storage of materials or for other purposes, he shall obtain a satisfactory release from the 
owner of said property after completion of the work and the removal of all materials and 
equipment therefrom. 

(c) After completion of all work contemplated under the contract and before final cleanup of the 
site of each separate part of the work; shall restore all surfaces to a neat and orderly condition; 
and shall remove all construction equipment, tools and supplies therefrom. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



CONTROL OF WORK AND MATERIALS 

5.1 Authority of the Engineer: 

All work shall be done under the supervision of the engineer and to his satisfaction. He shall 
decide all questions which arise as to quality and acceptability of materials furnished, work 
performed, manner of performance, rate of progress of the work, sequence of construction, 
interpretation of plans and specifications, acceptable fulfillment of the contract, 
compensation and suspension of work. His decisions and estimates shall be final. 

5.2 Conformity with Plans: 

All work shall conform to the lines, grades, cross-sections, details and dimensions shown on 
the plans. Any deviation from the plans which may be required by the exigencies of 
construction will be determined by the engineer and authorized by him in writing. 

5.3 Existing Structures Not Shown on Plans: 

It is intended that the plans show the location of all existing surface and sub-surface structures. 
However, the location of many gas mains, water mains, conduits, sewers, etc., is unknown 

and the owner assumes no responsibility for failure to show any or all of these structures on 
the plans or to show them in their exact location. It is mutually agreed that such failure will not 
be considered sufficient basis for claims for extra work or for increasing the pay quantities, 
unless an obstruction encountered is such as to necessitate substantial changes in the lines or 
grades or requires the building of special structures, provisions for which are not made in the 
plans, in which case the provisions in these specifications for extra work shall apply. 

5.4 Sub-surface Information and Data: 

The sub-surface information and data furnished in the drawings are not intended as 
representations or warranties but are furnished for information only. It is expressly 
understood that the owner will not be responsible fort he accuracy thereof any deduction, 
interpretation, or conclusion drawn therefrom by the contractor. The information is made 
available in order that the contractor may have ready access to the same information available 
to the owner and is not a part of this contract. 

5.5 Coordination of Plans and Specifications: 

The plans and specifications are complementary and a requirement occurring in either of them is 
binding as if shown in both. In any conflict between plans and specifications the engineer shall 
make such corrections or interpretations as may be deemed necessary for the fulfillment of the 
intent of the plans and specifications. If any discrepancy between figured dimensions and 
scaled dimensions arise, the figured dimensions shall govern. 

5.6 Shop and Erection Drawings: 

The contractor shall furnish to the engineer detailed shop drawings for work that is to be 
fabricated and erection drawings equipment that is to be installed. These drawings shall show 
the principal dimensions of the materials or equipment to be furnished, foundation plans, 
number and position of all anchor bolts, together with the manufacturer's specifications, parts 

lists, descriptive literature and operating instructions. Materials shall not be fabricated nor 
equipment shipped until these drawings have been approved by the engineer. Approval of 
these drawings shall not relieve the contractor for the correctness of all dimensions and for the 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



correct fitting of all parts for the satisfactory installation and operation in service of all materials 
and equipment as specified. 

5.7 Cooperation of the Contractor: 

(a) The contractor shall maintain a copy of the plans and specifications available on the work at 
all times. 

(b) The contractor shall give to the work the consistent attention necessary to facilitate the 
progress thereof and shall provide a competent superintendent on the work at all times who 
is fully authorized as his agent on the work. The superintendent shall be capable of thoroughly 
understanding the plans and specifications and shall receive and fulfill instructions from the 
Engineer or his authorized representative. 

5.8 Construction Grades and Stakes 

The engineer will furnish the contractor with bench marks and control points from which all 
lines, grades and measurements necessary for the proper prosecution and control of the 
work shall be set by the contractor. The contractor shall satisfy himself as to the accuracy of 
all measurements before proceeding with the work. In the setting of batter boards, the 
contractor shall furnish all necessary materials and labor. All stakes and markings set by the 
engineer for his own use or for the contractor's guidance shall be scrupulously preserved by the 
contractor. Any stakes or markings lost or destroyed by the contractor's forces through 
negligence shall be replaced by the engineer at the contractor's expense when so ordered by 
the engineer. 

5.9 Authority of lnspectors 

(a) The inspectors employed by and working under the directions of the engineer shall have 
full authority to reject any defective material or workmanship and to suspend any construction 
that is improperly performed, subject to the final decision of the engineer. lnspectors will 
not be authorized to revoke, alter, enlarge, or relax the provisions of the plans and specifications 
or to issue any instructions contrary thereto. 

(b) The contractor may request, and the engineer will issue, written instructions on any 
important questions which may develop in respect to the acceptance or rejection of materials 
or workmanship. 

5.10 Quality of Materials and Equipment 

Only materials and equipment conforming to the requirements of these specifications shall be 
used in the work and such materials and equipment shall be used only after approval has been 
given by the engineer. All materials and equipment furnished for the work shall be new and 
unused and of recent manufacture. 

5.1 1 Samples and Tests of Materials 

(a) Where required by the specifications or by the engineer, tests andlor inspection of 
materials incorporated in the work shall be performed by commercial laboratories approved 
by the engineer. Tests, unless otherwise specified, shall be made in accordance with the 
latest standard methods of the American Society for Testing Materials. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



(b) The costs of such tests, sampling and inspection shall be borne by the contractor, who shall 
furnish evidence satisfactory to the engineer that the materials have passed the required tests 
and inspections prior to the incorporation of such materials into the work. 

5.1 2 Storage of Materials and Equipment 

(a) All materials and equipment intended for incorporation into the work shall be stored in a 
manner that will insure preservation of their quality and fitness of the work. Storage facilities 
shall be provided at the expense of the contractor. 

(b) The contractor shall be responsible for loss, damage or deterioration of materials and 
equipment caused by improper protection from weather or from other sources of damage. 

5.13 lnspection 

The engineer will inspect all phases of the work in progress. The contractor shall furnish the 
engineer with every reasonable facility for ascertaining whether or not the work as performed 
is in accordance with the requirements and intents of the plans and specifications. Should 
any work be covered or hidden prior to the approval thereof by the engineer, it shall be 
uncovered for examination at the contractor's expense. 

5.14 Removal of Defective and Unauthorized Work 

(a) Work performed without proper controls for lines and grades having been given; work 
performed beyond the lines or not in conformity with the grades shown on the plans or as 
given; or done without proper inspection; or any extra or unclassified work performed without 
written authority and prior agreement in writing as to prices, will be performed at the 
contractor's risk and will be considered unauthorized, and, at the option of the engineer, may 
not be measured and paid for and may be ordered removed at the contractor's expense. 

(b) All work which has been rejected or condemned shall be removed and replaced at the 
contractor's expense. Defective materials shall be removed immediately from the site of the 

work. 

5.15 Test Period and Final Inspection 

(a) As each separate principal part of the work is completed, it shall be immediately inspected 
by the engineer. If found to be insubstantial compliance with the plans and specifications, it 
shall be tentatively accepted by the engineer. Thereafter, all such completed and accepted part 
of the work shall be maintained in good condition by and at the expense of the contractor until 
final acceptance by the owner of all work covered by the contract. 

(b) After the principal operating parts of the work have been completed and tentatively 
accepted, they shall be operated simultaneously as a single unit by and at the expense of 
the contractor, in the presence of the engineer, for a period of not less than ten (10) days. 
During the test period, the contractor shall make all such repairs, adjustments and 
replacements as may be found necessary to develop the capacities and complete 
operating functions called for or implied in the specifications. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



(c ) Operation and maintenance work prior to and during the test period shall be by and at the 
expense of the contractor and shall be continued until all work performed under the contract has 
been formally accepted by the owner. 

(d) After the test period has been concluded and the construction of all work under contract has 
been completed, the engineer, contractor and a representative of the owner shall make a joint 
final inspection of all phases of the work. If the work is not acceptable at the time of such 
inspection, the engineer will notify the contractor of the defects which must be remedied 
before final acceptance can be made. 

LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY TO PUBLIC 

6.1 Laws to Be Observed: 

The contractor shall, at all times, observe and comply with all Federal and State laws and 
local ordinances and regulations which in any manner affect the conduct of the work and shall 
observe and comply with all orders and decrees which exist at the present or which may be 
enacted later, or bodies or tribunals having jurisdiction or authority over the work. 

6.2 Permits and Licenses 

The contractor shall procure all permits and licenses, pay all charges or fees, and give all 
notices necessary and incident to lawful prosecution of the work. 

6.3 Patented Devices, Materials and Processes 

The contractor and the Surety shall indemnify and save harmless to the owner and his or its 
duly authorized representatives from all and every demand for damages, royalties or fees 
on 
any patented devices, materials and processes used by him or used in connection with the 
work done or material furnished under this contract. 

6.4 Sanitation 

The contractor shall provide and maintain the necessary sanitary conveniences for the 
use of laborers on the worksite, properly secluded from public observations. Sanitary 
conveniences and practices shall comply with state and local regulations. 

6.5 Public Convenience and Safety 

(a) Where the work is located in or near city streets, alleys or rights-of-way, or highways the 
contractor shall store construction materials and perform the work in such a manner as will 
provide reasonably adequate and satisfactory convenience for the general public and residents 
along the work. 

(b) No street shall be closed without the permission of the engineer and the fire 
department having jurisdiction. Where traffic is diverted from the work the contractor shall 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



provide all materials and perform all work for the construction and maintenance of all 
required temporary roadways and structures. 

(c) Storage of materials and the work shall be arranged so that there will be free access to all fire 
hydrant, valves, manholes and other utility appurtenances. 

(d) The contractor shall take such precautionary measures in the performance of the work as 
will give maximum protection at all times to persons and property near the work. 

6.6 Barricades and Warning Signals 

Where the work is located in or adjacent to any street, alley or public place, the contractor shall 
at his own expense furnish and erect such barricades, fences, lights, and danger signals and 
shall provide such watchmen as are required to protect persons, property and the work. 
Barricades shall be painted so as to be visible at night. From sunset to sunrise, the contractor 
shall furnish and maintain at least one (1) light at each barricade. The contractor shall be solely 
responsible for all damages to the work due to failure of barricades, signs, lights and watchmen 
to protect it. The contractor's responsibility for the maintenance of barricades, signs, lights and 
watchmen shall not cease until the project has been finally accepted by the owner. 

6.7 Use of Explosives 

Should the contractor elect to use explosives in the prosecution of the work, the utmost care 
shall be exercised so as not to endanger life or property, and the contractor shall carry on 
such work in compliance with the applicable state and local laws and ordinances regulating 
the use of explosives. Where explosives are stored or kept, they shall be marked plainly, 
"Dangerous - Explosives." 

6.8 Privileges of the Contractor in Streets, Alleys, and Rights-of-Ways 

For the performance of the contract, the contractor will be permitted to occupy such portions of 
the public property as will not unduly restrict traffic or endanger the public. 

6.9 Railway and Highway Crossings 

(a) Where the work encroaches upon the right-of-way of any railway, public highway or 
other public utility, the owner will obtain all easements or authority necessary to enter upon 
such right-of-way for the prosecution and completion of the work; but the contractor shall 
make all arrangements with the owner of the right-of-way for the actual construction work and 
shall perform the work on or across the right-of-way in the manner and at the times agreed 
upon with the owner, and shall pay the costs thereof, including the costs, if any, of 
temporary construction performed by the owner as a means of providing safe and continuous 
operation of its facilities during the construction period. The contractor shall take extra 
precautions for the safety of the work, the owner's facilities and the general public as may be 
necessary, by sheeting, bracing, and thoroughly supporting the sides of any excavation and 
supporting and protecting any adjacent structures. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



(b) Where required by any railway or highway owner, the contractor shall post with the owner 
thereof any performance bond which may be required to guarantee the satisfactory 
replacement or repair of materials, paving or grading within the right-of-way thereof. 

6.10 Protection and Restoration of Property 

(a) The contractor shall not enter upon private property for any purpose without first obtaining 
permission from its owner and he shall be responsible for the preservation of, and shall use 
every precaution necessary to prevent damage to, all trees, shrubbery, fences, culverts, 
bridges, pavement, driveways, sidewalks, etc. and to all water, sewer, gas, telephone, and 
electric lines thereof, and to all other public or private property along or adjacent to the work. 
The contractor shall notify the proper representatives of any public service corporation, any 

company or any individual not less than twenty-four (24) hours in advance of any work which 
might damage or interfere with the operation of their property, along or adjacent to the work. 
The contractor shall be responsible for all damage or injury to property of any character 
resulting from any act, omission, neglect or misconduct in the manner or method of executing 
the work or due to is non execution of the work or at any time due to defective work or 
materials. 

(b) When and where any direct or indirect damage or injury is done to public or private 
property on account of any act, omission, neglect or misconduct in the execution of the work 
or in consequence of the non-execution thereof on the part of the contractor, he shall 
restore, at his expense, such property to a condition similar or equal to that existing before such 
damage or injury was done, by repairing, rebuilding or otherwise restoring as may be directed, 
or he shall make good such damage or injury in an acceptable manner. 

6.11 Public Utilities and Public Property to be Changed 

(a) Where the proper accomplishment of the work requires that any property of privately-owned 
public utilities be cut, moved, relocated, rebuilt, or otherwise disturbed in any way, the owner 

shall, upon proper application by the contractor, notify the utility owner to make the 
required changes. The contractor, prior to making application to the owner shall make all 
preliminary arrangements with the utility owner, including the scheduling of work. The owner 
shall not be responsible for any delays in the accomplishment of the required changes on utility 
property by reason of the contractor's failure to schedule the work properly or otherwise; 
and in no case shall the contractor be allowed any claim for extension of time or additional 
compensation based on failure of the utility owner to make the required changes within the 
stipulated period of time. 

6.12 Service Connections 

Where service connections or lines from water or gas mains or sewers to the user's 
premises are disconnected, broken, damaged, or otherwise rendered inoperative by the 
contractor for any reason he shall, at his own expense, repair or replace same and 
restore service to the premises at the earliest possible time. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



6.13 Temporary Sewer and Drain Connections 

When existing storm or sanitary sewers are required to be taken up, moved, or rebuilt, the 
contractor, at his own expense, shall provide and maintain temporary outlets and connections 
for all private or public drains, sewers, and sewer outlets connected to or served by the sewers 
to be rebuilt, and where necessary, shall provide adequate pumping facilities; and shall 
maintain these services until such time as the permanent sewers and connections are 
built and in service. 

6.14 Water and Electricity 

(a) It shall be the responsibility of the contractor to provide and maintain at his own expense an 
adequate supply of water and electricity required for the work. 

(b) Electric power used through permanent electrical connections of the work for preliminary 
operation shall be paid for by the contractor until final acceptance of the work by the owner. 

6.15 Use of  a Section or Portion of the Work 

Whenever, in the opinion of the engineer, any portion of the work or any structure is in suitable 
condition, it may be put into use upon the written order of the engineer and such usage shall not 
be held to be in any way an acceptance of the work or structure or any part thereof as a waiver 
of any of the provisions of these specifications or contract. Pending final completion and 
acceptance of the work, all necessary repairs and renewals of any section of the work so put 
into use, due to defective material or workmanship, to natural causes other than ordinary wear 
and tear or to the operation of the contractor shall be performed by and at the expense of the 

contractor. 

6.16 Responsibility and Liability for Claims 

(a) The contractor and his surety shall indemnify and save harmless the owner and all its 
officers, agents, and servants against any claims of liability arising from or based on the violation 
of any law, ordinance, regulation, order or decree, whether by himself or by his employees. 

(b) The contractor and his surety shall indemnify and save harmless the owner and all its 
officers, agents and employees from all suits, actions or claims of any character, name and 
description brought for, or on account of any injuries or damages received or sustained by 
any person, persons or property by or from the contractor or by or in consequence of any 
neglect in safeguarding the construction, or through the use of unacceptable materials in 
constructing the work, or by on account of any claim or amounts arising or recovered 
under the "Workmen's Compensation Law" or any other law, ordinance, order or decree. 

(c) The contractor guarantees the payment of all just claims for materials, supplies, tools, labor, 
etc., against him or any subcontractor in connection with his contract. 

6.17 Insurance 

The contractor shall take out and maintain throughout the life of the contract, Workmen's 
Compensation, Contractor's Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance. The public liability 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



shall be in an amount not less than $1,000,000 for injuries, including accidental death, to any 
one person and not less than $1,000,000 on account of one accident. Property damage insurance 
shall be in an amount not less than $1,000,000. Workmen's Compensation insurance shall be in 
conformity with the requirements of the state laws. The contractor shall furnish the owner with 
satisfactory evidence of his compliance with these provisions. 

6.18 Contractor's Responsibility for the Work 

Until acceptance by the engineer as provided for in these specifications, the work shall 
be under the charge and care of the contractor and he shall take every necessary precaution 
to prevent injury or damage to the worker or any part thereof by the action of the elements or 
from any other cause whatsoever, whether arising from the execution or from the 
non-execution of the work. The contractor shall rebuild, repair, restore and make good, at his 
own expense, all injuries or damage to any portion of the work occasioned by any of the 
aforenamed causes before acceptance. 

6.19 No Waiver of Legal Rights 

Inspection by the engineer or by any of his duly authorized representatives, any order, 
measurement or certificate by the engineer, any order by the owner for payment of money, any 
payment for or acceptance of any work or any extension of time or possession taken by the 
owner, shall not operate as a waiver of any provision of the contract or any power therein 
reserved to the owner or any right of damages therein provided. Any waiver of any breach of 
contract shall not be held to be a waiver of any other or subsequent breach. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS 

7.1 Subcontracts and Assignments 

The contractor shall not let any part of the work to a subcontractor nor shall he assign the 
whole or any part of the contract or any monies due there under without prior written 
consent of the owner. Any subcontracts so let shall be subject to all of the applicable 
provisions of the principal contract and the contractor shall be fully responsible for the acts 
and omissions of his subcontractors. 

7.2 Beginning and Completion of Work 

After award and execution of the contract the owner shall notify the contractor in writing to 
proceed with the work, such notice to state the date on which the contractor will commence 
work. The rate of progress shall be such that the whole work will be performed and premises 
cleaned up in accordance with the contract, plans and specifications within the time limit as set 
out in the Special Conditions. 

7.3 Construction Schedule 

Within ten (10) days after date of contract, the contractor shall prepare and submit to the 
owner for approval a construction schedule showing the dates on which he proposes to start 
and complete each separate part of the work. When approved by the owner, the 

construction schedule shall become a part of the contract and shall be adhered to as closely 
as practicable thereafter by the contractor until each separate part of the work has been 
completed. The schedule may be revised from time to time as the work progresses by approval 
of both parties to the contract; but approval by the owner shall not be construed in any way as an 
approval of an extension of time of completion. 

7.4 Prosecution of Work 

The contractor shall continuously and diligently prosecute the work in such order and manner, 
and with an ample force of men and equipment that will accomplish the work in a safe and 
workmanlike manner. 

7.5 Character of Workmen and Equipment 

(a) The contractor shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, regulations and ordinances 
governing the employment of labor and the payment of wages thereto for work performed under 
this contract. In general, the contractor shall give preference to qualified local residents but in 
no case shall he employ any person whose age or physical condition is such as to make his 
employment dangerous to the health or safety of himself or of others employed on the work. 

(b) The contractor shall adopt uniform schedules for wage rates and working hours, and shall 
follow such schedules consistently throughout the life of the contract. The owner reserves the 
right to examine the contractor's payroll and employment records to insure compliance with 
these provisions. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



(c) All workmen shall have sufficient skill and experience to properly perform the work assigned 
to them. On any special or skilled work or in any trade, only qualified, careful and efficient 
mechanics shall be used. 

(d) Any employee of the contractor who may be adjudged by the owner to be incompetent, 
untrustworthy or otherwise undesirable shall be removed from the work immediately upon 
request of the owner and shall not be re-employed on the work thereafter. 

(e) The contractor shall furnish such equipment as is considered necessary for the prosecution 
of the work in an acceptable manner and at a satisfactory rate of progress. All equipment, tools 
and machinery shall be subject to the approval of the engineer. 

7.6 Annulment of Contract 

(a) The contract may be annulled by the owner for any of the following reasons: (1) 
Substantial evidence that the progress being made by the contractor is insufficient to complete 
the work within the specified time; (2) Deliberate failure on the part of the contractor to 
precede with the construction of the work when so instructed by the engineer or to observe any 
requirements of these specifications; (3) Failure on the part of the contractor to promptly 
make good any defects in materials or construction that may be called to his attention by the 
engineer; (4) in case the contractor becomes insolvent or is declared bankrupt, or allows 
any final judgment to stand against him unsatisfied, or shall make an assignment for the benefit 
of his creditors. 

(b) Before the contracts annulled, the contractor and his Surety will first be notified in writing by 
the owner of the conditions which make annulment of the contract imminent. Fifteen (15) days 
after notice is given, if no effective effort has been made by the contractor or his surety to 
correct the conditions of which complaint is made, the owner may declare the contract 
annulled, and will notify the contractor and his surety accordingly. 

(c) Upon receipt of notice from the owner that the contract has been annulled; the contractor 
shall immediately discontinue all operations. The owner may then proceed with the construction 
in any lawful manner that it may elect, until it is finally completed. When thus finally 
completed, the total cost of the work will be computed and if this total cost is greater than the 
contractor price, the difference shall be paid to the owner by the contractor or his surety. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



7.7 Extension of Time of Completion 

The contractor may be allowed an extension of time for delays due to unforeseeable causes 
beyond the contractors control and without the fault or negligence of the contractor, including 
but not restricted to acts of God, the public enemy, and the Federal Government. Delays due 
to adverse weather conditions shall not be considered as grounds for an extension of time of 
completion. Extension of time shall be considered only when submitted to the engineer in writing 
within ten (10) days from and after the time when any alleged cause of delay shall occur. 

7.8 Failure to Complete Work on Time 

In case of delay in completion of the work and in case the owner does not terminate the 
contractor's right to proceed, then the actual damages caused by the delay will be 
impossible to determine, in which event the contractor shall pay to the owner, in lieu thereof, 
as fixed, agreed and liquidated damages an amount as stipulated in the Special Conditions 

for each calendar day of delay until the work has been completed and accepted; and the 
contractor and his sureties shall be liable to the owner for the total amount thereof. 

7.9 Temporary Suspension 

(a) The engineer shall have the authority to suspend the work wholly or in part for such 
period or periods of time as he may deem necessary due to unsuitable weather or such other 
conditions as rare considered unfavorable or the suitable prosecution of work. The 
contractor shall proceed with the work promptly when notified by the engineer to resume 
operations. 

(b) The contractor shall not suspend work without written authority from the engineer. 

7.1 0 Termination of Contract 

(a) The contract will be considered fulfilled, except as provided in any bond or bonds or by law, 
when all the work has been completed, the final inspection made and final acceptance and final 
payment have been made by the owner. 

(b) The contractor shall guarantee each specific portion of the work against defective 
materials and workmanship, and to meet all performance requirements for a period of one year 
from date of acceptance by the owner; and shall furnish satisfactory evidence to the owner 
that all sums of money due for labor and materials used in the work have been paid. During 
the guarantee period, upon written request by the owner, the contractor shall immediately 
replace or repair all defective materials and make good all defective workmanship at his own 
expense and to the satisfaction of the owner. 
(c)  After final inspection and upon receipt of satisfactory evidence of payment for all labor 
and materials used in the work, the engineer will notify the owner in writing of his acceptance 
of the work performed under the contract and of his recommendations in respect to 
final payment to the contractor. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



MEASUREMENTS AND PAYMENTS 

8.1 Measurements of Quantities 

The determination of quantities of work acceptably completed under the terms of the 
contract will be made by the engineer, based on measurements taken by him or his 
assistants. These measurements will be taken according to the United States standard 
measurements. 

8.2 Scope of Payment 

(a) The contractor shall receive and accept as compensation, as herein provided, in full 
payment of furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals; for performing all 
work contemplated and embraced under the contract; for all loss or damage arising out of the 
nature of the work or from the action of the elements; for any unforeseen defects or 
obstructions which may arise during the prosecution of the work and before its final acceptance 
by the owner; for all risks connected with the prosecution of the work; for all expense incurred 
by or in consequence of suspension or discontinuance of such prosecution of the work herein 
specified; for any infringement of patents, trademarks or copyrights; and for completing the work 
in an acceptable manner according to the plans and specifications. 

(b) Any materials or work covered by partial estimates shall, upon payment, become the sole 
property of the owner; however, the payment of any partial or periodical estimates prior to 
final acceptance of the work by the owner shall in no way constitute an acknowledgment of the 
acceptance of the work nor in any way prejudice or effect the obligation of the contractor to 
repair, correct, renew or replace, at his expense, any defects or imperfections in the 
construction or in strength or quality of the materials used in the construction of the work under 
the contract 8.3 Payment for Extra Work. 

(a) The extra work performed by the contractor, authorized by the engineer and approved by the 
owner will be paid at the lump sum andlor unit prices agreed on in written change orders signed 
by the contractor, engineer and owner before such work is begun. All extra work shall be 
subject to all other conditions of the contract. 

8.4 Partial Payments 

(a) At the end of each calendar month during the life of the contract the engineer will 
prepare an estimate of the quantities of work and of the total amount due therefore. On or 
before the fifteenth (15th) day of the following month the owner will make a partial payment to 
the contractor equivalent in amount to the value of all work done to the end of the preceding 
month, less ten (10) per cent of such amount to be retained, less previous payments.. The 
retained amounts shall be held by the owner until final completion and acceptance of all work 
contemplated under the contract, at which time the retained amounts and other amounts then 
due shall be paid in full. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



(b) In the preparation of monthly partial pay estimates account may be taken, if specifically 
approved by the owner, of materials delivered to the site of work but not yet incorporated into the 
work. 

(c ) If, upon completion of approximately fifty (50) percent of all work authorized, the owner 
sees that satisfactory progress is being made, he may make any of the remaining partial 
payments in full without retainage. 

8.5 Final Payment 

(a) When the work provided for by the contract has been completely performed on the 
part of the contractor and all parts of the work have been approved by the engineer and 
accepted by the owner, a final estimate will be prepared which shows the total cost of the 
work performed under the contract, including extra work as authorized by change orders, 
the total amount retained and the total amount paid on previous partial estimates. All prior 
estimates upon which payments have been made are subject to necessary corrections or 
revisions in the final payment. All pay estimates will be certified as correct by the engineer 
and approved by the owner before payment. 

(b) The final payment will be made to the contractor as soon as practicable after final 
acceptance by the owner. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



STREET IMPROVEMENTS 
DETAILED SPECIFICATIONS 

Section 

1.05 Milling of Asphalt 

11. Adjusting Manholes, Inlets, and Catch 
Basins 

111. Bituminous Tack Coat 

IV. Hot-Laid Plant Mix Seal Wearing Course 
and Binder Leveling Course 

Page 

36 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



DETAILED SPECIFICATIONS 
ITEM I. 

1.05 MILLING OF ASPHALT 

The milling of asphalt shall be performed in a manner that will 
produce a smooth riding surface. The equipment used for milling 
shall and will be approved by the City engineer. 

1.06 BASIS OF PAYMENT 

Payment shall be made at the contract unit Price Per Ton, and 
shall be the actual number of tons milled and verified by the 
plant inspector at the plant weigh station. The contractor shall 
furnish the city of Mountain Brook with two (2) copies of weight 
tickets on each truck returning milled mix to the plant. This 
amount, so paid, shall constitute full compensation for milling 
and transporting the mix to the plant and furnishing all 
equipment and tools, fuel, labor and incidentals necessary to 
complete the work. 
ITEM 11. 

ADJUSTING MANHOLES, INLETS AND CATCH BASINS 

2.01 SCOPE 

The work covered by this item shall consist of furnishing all 
materials and labor necessary for the resetting and adjusting of 
existing manhole, inlet, or catch basin frames and covers to 
bring them to the location and grade required by the new 
construction. 

2.02 RESETTING 

Existing manhole, inlet, and catch basin frames and covers shall 
be reset in accordance with these specifications when the 
existing manholes, inlets, or catch basins are more than one (1) 
inch above or below the new grade or elevation of the proposed 
construction. They shall be thoroughly cleaned and accurately 
set to line and grade of the new construction by removing the 
frame and cover and raising or lowering the masonry top of the 
structure and resetting on a cushion of cement mortar. 

2.03 PAVING RINGS 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



Paving rings of proper diameter, width, length, weight, and 
height, may be used on manhole, inlet, or catch basin frames in 
lieu of resetting under this specification. 

2.04 METHOD OF PAYMENT 

Payment for adjusting, resetting, or raising manhole, inlet, and 
catch basin frames and covers shall be made for the actual number 
so relocated as specified above and at the unit price as listed 
under Item 11. of the contract pay items. This amount, so paid, 
shall be full compensation for adjusting, resetting, and 
furnishing and placing paving rings, materials, tools, equipment, 
forms, drawings and specifications, and performing all labor 
required to complete the work herein specified. 

ITEM I11 

BITUMINOUS TACK COAT 

3.01 SCOPE 

The work covered by this item shall consist of furnishing all 
labor, materials and equipment, and performing all operations in 
connection with the application of a bituminous tack coat on a 
previously prepared bituminous binder course or existing 
pavement, as shown on drawings, as hereinafter specified and as 
directed by the engineer. 

3.02 DESCRIPTION 

The bituminous tack coat shall consist of a hot or cold 
application of bituminous material on a prepared bituminous 
binder course, base course or existing pavement as specified by 
the engineer. 

3.03 QUANTITY OF MATERIAL 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



The amount of bituminous material to be applied to each square 
yard for the tack coat shall be within the maximum and minimum 
quantities specified herein below. The exact amount to be 
applied shall be determined by the engineer and may be varied to 
meet existing conditions. 

MATERIAL AMOUNT 
Gallons Per 

Square Yard 
Bituminous Material 0.05 to 0.15 

3.04 BITUMINOUS MATERIAL 

The bituminous material to be used for the tack coat shall be 
either asphalt cement or cutback asphalt and shall conform to the 
following: 

ASPHALT CEMENT 

The asphalt cement shall be homogeneous, free from water, shall 
not foam when heated to a temperature of 350 deg. F. and shall 
meet the following requirements: 

A.A.S.H .O 
TEST METHODS 

Water Percent . . . . . . . . .  T-55-42 

Penetration @ 77 
TEST METHODS 

degrees F....... T-48-42 
Flash Point Deg. F. 
Cleve. Open Cup) . . .  T-51-42 
Duot. Asphalt Residue 
@ 77 Deg. F. CM.. T-45-42 
Portion of Bitumen 
Soluble in CCL4 ....... 
Temperature of 
Application, Deg. F. 

MIN. MAX. 
-- 0 

MIN. MAX. 

CUT-BACK ASPHALT 

The cutback asphalt shall be homogeneous; it shall not have been 
distilled at a temperature high enough to injure by cracking. It 
shall be free from water, shall show no separation upon standing 
and shall meet the following requirements: 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



A.A.S.H.O. 

TEST GRADES 
METHODS RC-2 - RC-3 

Flash Point 
(Open Tag) Deg. F. T-79-42 80+ 80+ 
Fural Viscosity 
@ 140 Deg. F. T-72-42 100-200 250-500 
@ 180 Deg. F. 125-250 
Distillation ( %  of Tota1)T-78-42 
Distillate to 437 Deg. F. 40+ 25+ 
Distillate to 500 Deg. F. 65+ 55+ 
Distillate to 600 Deg. F. 87+ 83+ 
Residue from Distillation to 680 Deg. F. 
Test of Residue 67 + 73+ 
Penetration @ 77 Deg. F. T-49-42 80-120 80-120 
Ductility @ 77 Deg. F. T-51-42 loo+ loo+ 
Percent Soluble in CC14 T-44-42 99.5+ 99.5+ 
Temperature of Application, 

Deg. F. 100-175 150-200 175-200 

RC- 4 

80+ 

Sampling and Testing of Bituminous Material. All sampling of 
bituminous material unless otherwise specified shall be done in 
accordance with the American Association of State Highway 
Officials method No. T-40-42. All tests shall be supplied by the 
Contractor at his expense. 

3.05 WEATHER LIMITATION 

The tack coat shall be applied only when the existing surface is 
dry, when the atmospheric temperature is above fifty (50) degrees 
F., and when the weather is not rainy. 

3.06 EQUIPMENT 
(a) All equipment, tools, machines, etc., shall be subject to the 
approval of the engineer and must be maintained in satisfactory 
condition at all times. 

(b) The distributor shall have pneumatic tires. It shall be so 
designed and equipped to distribute the bituminous material 
uniformly at even heat on variable widths of surface at readily 
determined and controlled rates of from five hundredths (.05) to 
twenty-five (25) to seventy-five (75) pounds per square inch and 
with an allowable variation from any specified rate not to exceed 
Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3 875 



five (5) percent. Distributor equipment shall include an 
independently operated bitumen pump, tachometer, pressure gauges, 
volume measuring devices and a thermometer for reading 
temperature of tank contents. The distributor shall be 
equipped for circulation and agitation of the bituminous material 
during the heating process. 

(c) When cutback asphalt is used any suitable hand method 
approved by.the engineer may be employed as long as the material 
is uniformly distributed over the entire surface. 

3.07 REMOVAL OF LOOSE AND FOREIGN MATERIAL 

Immediately before applying the tack coat all surfaces, both 
horizontal and vertical, which will be in contact with the new 
asphalt plant mix shall be thoroughly cleaned of all dirt, 
debris, extruded joint material, grease, oil, grass, roots, clay 
coating, and all other foreign materials which may impair the 
construction. All depressions not reached by rotary power brooms 
and blower shall be cleaned by hand brooming, or other equipment, 
as directed by the engineer, including, but not limited to, 
washing and flushing. The contractor shall not grease, oil or 
perform any maintenance of any equipment while located within the 
construction limits of the work. 

3.08 APPLICATION OF BITUMINOUS MATERIAL 

After the operation of removing the dust has been completed and 
prior to the application of the tack coat, an inspection shall be 
made of the course to be treated to determine its fitness to 
receive the bituminous tack coat. That portion of the surface of 
the course proposed for immediate treatment must be dry and in a 
satisfactory condition. The application of the bituminous tack 
material shall be made by means of a pressure distributor or 
approved hand method, as hereinbefore specified, at the 
temperature specified and shall be applied at the pressure and in 
amounts as directed by the engineer. The bituminous tack 
material shall be so applied that uniform distribution is 
obtained at all points of the surface to be treated. Unless the 
distributor is equipped to obtain satisfactory results at the 
junction of previous and subsequent applications building paper 
shall be spread on the surface for a sufficient distance back 
from the ends of each application so that flow through the sprays 
may be started and stopped on the paper and all sprays will be 
operated at full force on the surface to be treated. Immediately 
after the application, the building paper so employed shall be 
removed and destroyed. All spots unavoidably missed by the 
distributor shall be properly treated with bituminous material. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



Following the application the surface shall be allowed to cure 
without being disturbed for such period of time as may be 
necessary to permit setting of the tack coat, as determined by 
the engineer. The contractor shall then maintain the surface 
until the succeeding layer of pavement has been placed. 
Suitable precautions shall be taken against damage during this 
interval by the contractor including supplying and spreading 
any sand necessary to cure excess bituminous material and making 
necessary repairs to damage spots. A suitable method shall be 
employed to protect all curbs and gutters from receiving any 
bituminous materials. 

3.09 POURING CRACKS 

Where excessive cracks have developed in existing plant mix 
pavements that are to be resurfaced such as cracks, are to be 
poured with asphalt. Before the cracks are poured, they shall be 
thoroughly cleaned of all dirt or other foreign matter by 
approved methods. The cracks shall then be poured with Grade A 
C-8 asphalt heated to a temperature that will allow it to flow to 
the full depth of the crack. After pouring is completed, all 
excess asphalt shall be removed from the surface of the pavement 
with suitable tools. 

3.10 DETERMINATION OF PAY QUANTITIES 

The quantities of bituminous tack coat for which payment will be 
allowed shall be expressed in gallons and shall be the actual 
quantities of material used in the accepted work as measured by 
the engineer, corrected to gallons at sixty (60) degrees F. in 
accordance with the appropriate table contained in the American 
Society for Testing Materials, Standard Abridged Volume 
Correction Table, Serial Designation D206-36, for Petroleum Oils. 

3.11 PAYMENT 

Payment for bituminous tack coat placed under these 
specifications shall be made for the quantities determined as 
specified above at the contract unit price per gallon as listed 
under Item I11 of the contract pay items. This amount, so paid, 
shall be full compensation for furnishing, delivering and 
applying the material, furnishing and spreading blotter material, 
and for all labor, equipment, tools and other expenses incidental 
to the work. Pouring cracks in existing pavements shall be 
considered as an incidental item of the work and no specific 
payment will be allowed therefor. 

ITEM IV 
Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



HOT LAID PLANT MIX SEAL COURSE AND BINDER COURSE 

5.01 SCOPE 

The work covered by this item shall consist of furnishing all 
labor, materials, equipment and performing all operations in 
connection with the construction of a hot laid plant mix seal 
course and hot laid plant mix binder course, as hereinafter 
specified and as directed by the engineer. The binder course may 
be used as a leveling course for filling holes and replacing 
removed base course, which has not been removed to a depth of 
more than two and one-half inches. In general, the binder course 
is to be used to ring an uneven surface to the intended contour 
of the finished pavement as well as to provide additional 
thickness to the existing pavement as required by the contract 
plans and specifications. 

5.02 DESCRIPTION 

The bituminous seal course and binder course shall consist of 
mineral aggregate and mineral filler uniformly plant mixed with 
bituminous material and placed and compacted on a prepared base 
course, existing pavement or subgrade. 

5.03 CLASSIFICATION 

The class of bituminous pavement shall be mixed in a central 
plant and laid hot in accordance with the requirements of these 
specifications. 

5 . 0  4 AGGREGATES 

(a) The binder aggregate shall consist of crushed stone, crushed 
slag, screenings, sand or asphaltic limerock. All aggreqates for 
hot laid seal course shall be slag conforming to American 
Association of State Highway Officials Standard Specification 
M29-42 and as specified in Item V. The aggregate shall be free 
from soft and disintegrated pieces, vegetable matter, balls of 
clay, clay coating, or other objectionable matter and shall be 
tough, durable and sound. The portion of the material retained 
on the No. 10 sieve shall be known as the coarse aggregate, the 
portion passing the No. 10 sieve and retained on the No. 200 
sieve shall be known as the fine aggregate and the portion 
passing the No. 200 sieve shall be known as the mineral filler. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



Only one type of aggregate shall be used except by written 
permission of the Engineer. 

(b) FINE AGGREGATE. The fine aggregate shall conform to the 
American Association of State Highway Officials Standard 
Specifications No. M-29-42 for Sand for Bituminous Mixtures. The 
gradation may be adjusted as directed by the Engineer. 

(c) COARSE AGGREGATE. The coarse aggregate shall conform to all 
the above requirements and shall have a percentage of wear not to 
exceed fifty (50) as determined by the Los Angeles Abrasion Test 
after five hundred (500) revolutions (A.A.S.H.O. Test Method 
T-96-42). Slag shall be blast furnace product having a dry 
weight per cubic foot of not less than seventy-five (75) pounds, 
and consist of angular fragments reasonably uniform in density, 
free from an excess of thin elongated pieces. Crushed stone 
shall be at least 90 percent sound when subjected to five 
alternations in the sodium sulphate test for soundness. 

(d) MINERAL FILLER. The mineral filler shall consist of 
Stonedust, Portland cement or other material approved by the 
engineer, and shall be free from foreign or other objectionable 
matter. 

(e) HYDRATED LIME. The hydrated lime shall meet the requirements 
of A.S.T.M. Designation C-6-44. 

(f) SAMPLING AND TESTING AGGREGATES. All sampling of aggregates 
unless otherwise specified shall be made in accordance with 
A.A.S.H.O. Method No. T-36-24 for mineral filler. All tests 
shall be supplied by the Contractor at his expense. The source 
from which the aggregates are to be obtained shall be selected by 
the Contractor well in advance of the time when they will be 
required in the work and suitable sized samples shall be 
furnished for testing. Subsequent testing of deliveries of 
aggregates shall be made as directed by the engineer. 

5 . 0 5  BITUMINOUS MATERIALS. 

(a) The grades of material used shall meet the requirements set 
forth in the following tables: 

(b) For Tack Coat: See Item IV. 

(C ) For Mixing: Asphalt shall be Grade AC-8 and shall meet the 
following requirements: 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



ASPHALT CEMENT 

The asphalt cement shall be homogeneous, free from water and 
shall meet the requirements of the following specifications: 

PETROLEUM 

ASPHALT 

AASHO 

TEST 

GRADES METHOD CEMENT 

Penetration @ 77 Deg. F. 5 Sec. T-4 9-42 

Total Bitumen (Soluble in CS/2) T-44-42 
Not Less Than 

Total Bitumen (Soluble in CC1/4) T-45-42 
Ductility @ 77 deg. F. T-51-42 

Not Less Than 
Flash Point deg. F. T-48-42 

Not Less Than 
Penetration of Residue @ 77 deg. F. 
lOOg 5 sec. as compared to penetration before heating 

Not Less Than T-49-42 
Loss @ 325 degrees F. 5 hrs. T-47-42 

Not More Than 
Temperature Deg. F. @ time of mixing 

(c ) Sampling & Testing Bituminous. A11 sampling unless 
otherwise 
specified shall be made in accordance with A.A.S.H.O. Method No. 
T-40-42. All tests shall be supplied by the Contractor at his 
expense. the source from which the bituminous materials are to 
b 
obtained shall be selected by the contractor well in advance of 
the time when they will be required in the work and suitable 
samples shall be furnished for testing in advance of the 
production of bituminous mixtures. Subsequent testing of 
deliveries of bituminous materials shall be made. 

5.06 Percentage of Bituminous Material. The percentage of 
bituminous material by weight to be used for preparing the 
bituminous mixtures shall be within the limit as directed by the 
engineer and hereinafter specified. 
Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



5 . 0 7  General Composition. The finished mixture prepared as 
hereinafter specified shall meet the following composition limits 
by weight: 

WEARING SURFACE 

Job Mix: Sieve Size 
Other Information: 

Passing 1% inch 

Passing 1 inch 

Passing 3/4 inch 

Passing % inch 
Passing 3/8 inch 

Passing No. 4 sieve 
Passing No. 8 sieve 

Passing No.16 sieve 
Passing No. 30 sieve 
Passing No. 50 sieve 
Passing No. 100 sieve 
Passing No. 200 sieve 

Percent by Weight 

100 % AC Required 
5.30 

100 AC Req. ton 
106.0 

100 Max. Sp. Grav. 
Mix 2.595 

100 Unit WT. 154.9 
97 Stability (lbs) 

1900 
80 Flow 11.50 
5 7 Agg. Sp. Gr. 

2.825 
40 TSR 0.97 
28 Anti-stip N/A 

Note: 5.30 % asphalt binder grade PG67-22 must be added to the 
mix. 
The remaining 0 % AC comes from the 
RAP. 

Materials: % Approx. Description 
#899 Steel Slag 

#810 Limestone 
#8910 BF Slaa 
Coarse Sand 
Baghouse Fines 

Type Mix: %" - Mix # Slag Seal Asphalt Binder 
Grade PG 67-22 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



JOB MIX: Sieve Size 
Information: 

BABY BINDER 

Percent by Weightother 

Passing 1 b inch 
Passing 1 inch 
Passing 3/4 inch 

Passing sl inch 
Passing 3/8 inch 
Passing 4 inch 
Passing 8 inch 
Passing 16 inch 
Passing 30 inch 
Passing 50 inch 
Passing 100 inch 
Passing 200 inch 

100 % AC Required 5.10 
100 AC Req. Tonl02.0 

100 Max. Sp. Grav. Mix 
2.502 

96 UNIT WT. 149.4 
7 9 Stability (lbs) 2000 

55 Flow 11.00 
38 Agg. Sp. Gr. 2.802 

27 TSR 0.95 
19 Anti-strip N/A 
10 # of Blows 50 
7 
5.1 

Note: 4.00 % asp. Binder grade PG67-22 must be added to 
the mix. The remaining 1.1% AC comes from the RAP. 

Materials: % Approx. Description 
#78 Limestone 
#810 Limestone 
#89 Limestone 
Coarse Sand 
Rap 
Baghouse Fines 

Type Mix: 3/4" Mix # Binder Asphalt Binder Grade pg 67-22 - 

The amount of bitumen shall be fixed by the engineer when the 
correct graduation and type of aggregate and length of haul of 
the 
plant mixture has been determined. The bitumen shall be a 
percent of the mineral aggregate. 

All plant mix material used must be workable at the time of 
placing and must be a stable mix that will set up properly. 

ASPHALTIC LIMESTONE. The rock asphalt shall be uniform natural 
asphaltic limestone consisting of not less than four percent (4%) 
of asphalt, not more than ninety-six percent (96%) of limestone, 
practically free from sulfates, alumins and any but minute 
shells. 
It shall be so crushed that the pulverized material will meet the 
following gradation requirements: 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



Passing 200 mesh sieve 6 percent to 14 percent 
Passing 10 mesh sieve 50 percent to 75 percent 
Passing 3/8 inch screen 95 percent to 100 percent 

The asphaltic limestone shall be the product of a quarry and 
plant 
that has previously produced material meeting these requirements 
which has been successfully used for a period of not less than 
three (3) years. 

SAND. The sand used in this mixture shall be free from clay, 
loam 
and other foreign matter. It shall be so graded that not more 
than five percent (5%) will pass a 100 mesh sieve, not more than 
thirty percent (30%) will pass a 50 mesh sieve, and not more than 
five percent (5%) will be retained on a 4 mesh sieve. 

Arrangements shall be made to by-pass rock asphalt around any 
screen on the plant having openings smaller than three-quarters 
inch (3/4 ") . 
The mineral aggregate in the asphaltic limerock mixture shall 
contain approximately 50% asphaltic limerock and 50% natural 
sand, 
Stone or slag screenings. 

5 . 0 8  Mixing Plant. 

(a) The plant shall be so designed, coordinated and operated as 
to 
produce a mixture within these specifications. It shall have a 
minimum capacity of a 2,000 pound batch, and must be of the weigh 
batch type. Any plant used by the Contractor for the preparation 
of bituminous mixture shall conform to all the requirements 
specified below: 

(b) Requirements for all plants: 

(1) Plant Scales. Scales for any weigh box or hopper may be 
either of the beam or springless dial type and shall be of a 
standard make and design, sensitive to one-half of one percent of 
their maximum capacity. 

(2) Equipment for Preparation of Bituminous Material. Tanks for 
storage of bituminous material shall be capable of heating the 
material, under effective and positive control at all times, too 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



the temperature requirements set forth herein. The heating 
system 
shall provide uniform heating of the entire contents. 

(3) Feeder for Dryer. The plant shall be provided with an 
accurate mechanical means for uniformly feeding the mineral 
aggregate into the dryer so that a uniform production and a 
uniform temperature may be secured. 

(4) Dryer. A rotary dryer of any satisfactory design for drying 
and heating the mineral aggregates shall be provided. 

(5) Screens. Plant screens, capable of screening all aggregates 
to the specified sizes and proportions and having normal capacity 
slightly in excess of the full capacity of the mixer shall be 
provided. 

(6) Bituminous Control Unit. Satisfactory means for weighing 
shall be provided to obtain the proper amount of bituminous 
material as specified. 

(7) Thermometric Equipment. An armored thermometer reading from 
one hundred (100) to three hundred (300) degrees F. shall be 
fixed 
in the bituminous feed line at a suitable location near the 
discharge valve at the mixer unit. The plant shall be further 
equipped with an approved dial scale mercury actuated 
thermometer, 
an electric pyrometer, or the approved thermometric instrument, 
SO 
placed at the discharge chute of the dryer as to register 
automatically or indicate the temperature of the heated aggregate 
when drying or heating is required. 

(8) Devices for Application of Liquefiers. Plants for producing 
liquefier type of mixes shall be equipped with an approved means 
of accurately measuring the liquefier and a spray bar which will 
adequately spray the material uniformly over the entire mass of 
mineral aggregate. 

(c ) Special  Requirements for Batching Plants :(I) Weigh Box or 
Hopper. The equipment shall include a means for 
accurately weighing each bin size of aggregate in a weigh box or 
hopper suspended on scales ample in size to hold a full batch 
without hand raking or running over. The weigh box or hopper 
shall be supported on fulcrums and knife edges so constructed 
that 
they will not be easily thrown out of alignment or adjustment. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



( 2 )  Mixer Un i t  f o r  Batch Method. The p l a n t  s h a l l  i n c l u d e  a  s team 
j a c k e t e d  b a t h  mixer  of an approved  twin  pug m i l l  t y p e  and s h a l l  
b e  
c a p a b l e  o f  p roduc ing  a  un i form m i x t u r e  w i t h i n  s p e c i f i c a t i o n  
r e q u i r e m e n t s .  

5.09 Placing Equipment, 

Equipment f o r  s p r e a d i n g ,  s h a p i n g  and f i n i s h i n g  s h a l l  c o n s i s t  of  
an  
approved s e l f - c o n t a i n e d  power machine o p e r a t i n g  i n  such  a  manner 
a s  t o  p roduce  a  s u r f a c e  which w i l l  comply w i t h  t h e  s p e c i f i e d  
r e q u i r e m e n t s  f o r  smoothness .  Necessary  s m a l l  t o o l s ,  r a k e s ,  
s h o v e l s ,  l u t e s ,  e t c . ,  s h a l l  b e  p rov ided  t o  c o r r e c t  any  
i r r e g u l a r i t i e s  t h a t  may o c c u r  i n  p l a c i n g  t h e  c o u r s e .  When and i f  
s o  d i r e c t e d  by  t h e  e n g i n e e r ,  pneumat ic  t i res ,  moto r -d r iven  b l a d e  
g r a d e r  i n  good c o n d i t i o n  and  o f  an  approved d e s i g n  may be used 
f o r  
Leve l ing  unde r  t h e  c o n d i t i o n s  h e r e i n a f t e r  s p e c i f i e d .  I t  s h a l l  
have a  whee lbase  o f  n o t  less  t h a n  1 7  f e e t  and s h a l l  weigh n o t  
less t h a n  5 t o n s .  

5.10 Rolling Equipment. 

R o l l e r s  s h a l l  b e  d e s i g n e d  f o r  c o n s t r u c t i n g  b i tuminous  c o u r s e s .  
The power rol lers  s h a l l  b e  r o l l e r s  r a t e d  a t  s i x  t o  e i g h t  t o n s  
c a p a c i t y  and  may be  of  t h e  tandem t y p e .  The r o l l e r  wheels  s h a l l  
be  equipped  w i t h  a d j u s t a b l e  s c r a p e r s ,  which s h a l l  b e  used when 
n e c e s s a r y  t o  c l e a n  t h e  wheel s u r f a c e .  R o l l e r s  s h a l l  a l s o  be 
equipped  w i t h  w a t e r  t a n k s  and  s p r i n k l i n g  d e v i c e s  which s h a l l  be 
used t o  keep t h e  whee ls  wet and  p r e v e n t  t h e  m i x t u r e  f rom 
s t i c k i n g .  

5.11 Weather Limitations. 

Bituminous c o u r s e s  s h a l l  b e  c o n s t r u c t e d  o n l y  when t h e  s u r f a c e  i s  
d r y ,  when a t m o s p h e r i c  t e m p e r a t u r e  i s  above f i f t y  d e g r e e s  F. and 
when t h e  w e a t h e r  i s  n o t  r a i n y .  

5.12 Equipment. 

A l l  equipment ,  t o o l s ,  machines ,  p l a n t s ,  e t c . ,  s h a l l  b e  s u b j e c t  t o  
t h e  a p p r o v a l  o f  t h e  e n g i n e e r  and  must b e  m a i n t a i n e d  i n  
a  s a t i s f a c t o r y  working c o n d i t i o n  a t  a l l  t i m e s .  

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



5.13 R e c o n d i t i o n i n g  of Sub-Grade, E x i s t i n g  Pavements a n d  Base 
C o u r s e s .  

( a )  The sub-grade  o r  b a s e  c o u r s e  of  e x i s t i n g  pavements 
p r e v i o u s l y  c o n s t r u c t e d  s h a l l  be  r e c o n d i t i o n e d  a s  h e r e i n  s p e c i f i e d  
below p r i o r  
t o  l a y i n g  t h e  b i tuminous  c o u r s e .  The sub-grade  o r  b a s e  c o u r s e  
s u r f a c e  s h a l l  b e  c l e a n e d  o f  l o o s e  and  f o r e i g n  m a t t e r  by sweeping 
w i t h  power sweepers ,  power b lowers  o r  hand brooms a s  d i r e c t e d  by 
t h e  e n g i n e e r .  

( b )  Sub-Grade. A f t e r  t h e  sub-grade  h a s  been g raded  and r o l l e d  
t o  l i n e  and  p r o f i l e  e l e v a t i o n  t h e  sub-grade s h a l l  b e  t e s t e d  wi th  
a  t e n  ( 1 0 )  f o o t  s t r a i g h t  edge  a p p l i e d  p a r a l l e l  t o  and a t  r i g h t  
a n g l e s  t o  t h e  c e n t e r  l i n e s .  I t  s h a l l  n o t  show any d e v i a t i o n  i n  
e x c e s s  o f  t h r e e - e i g h t h s  i n c h e s  (3/811) and s h a l l  be  t o  g r a d e  a s  
shown on t h e  d rawings .  Any d e v i a t i o n  i n  e x c e s s  o f  t h i s  amount 
s h a l l  b e  c o r r e c t e d  b y  l o o s e n i n g ,  add ing  o r  removing m a t e r i a l ,  
r e s h a p i n g  a n d  re -compact ing  a s  d i r e c t e d  by t h e  e n g i n e e r .  When 
s o  s p e c i f i e d ,  t h e  sub-grade  s h a l l  b e  t r e a t e d  w i t h  a  pr ime c o a t  a s  
s p e c i f i e d  e l s e w h e r e  h e r e i n .  

( c )  Base Cour ses .  The s u r f a c e  o f  t h e  b a s e  c o u r s e  s h a l l  be 
i n s p e c t e d  and  t e s t e d  by t h e  e n g i n e e r  f o r  t o l e r a n c e  a s  s p e c i f i e d .  
Any d e v i a t i o n  i n  e x c e s s  o f  t h e  r e q u i r e m e n t s  s e t  f o r t h  s h a l l  be  
c o r r e c t e d  and  t r e a t e d  w i t h  a  pr ime c o a t  a s  s p e c i f i e d  e l s ewhere  
h e r e i n .  

( d )  E x i s t i n g  Pavements.  The s u r f a c e  of e x i s t i n g  pavements s h a l l  
be  t h o r o u g h l y  c l e a n e d  o f  a l l  l o o s e  a g g r e g a t e ,  c l a y ,  d i r t ,  d e b r i s  
o r  o t h e r  f o r e i g n  m a t t e r .  A l l  h o l e s ,  pavement f a i l u r e s  and  broken 
s u r f a c e s  s h a l l  b e  r e p a i r e d  o r  r e c o n s t r u c t e d .  I n  g e n e r a l ,  t h i s  
work s h a l l  b e  a s  f o l l o w s :  Small  p o t h o l e s  s h a l l  have a l l  l o o s e  
m a t e r i a l  removed and s h a l l  b e  t h o r o u g h l y  c l e a n e d  and mopped wi th  
a  h o t  pr ime c o a t .  These  h o l e s  s h a l l  t h e n  b e  f i l l e d  t o  g r a d e  wi th  
a  h o t  b i tuminous  b i n d e r  m a t e r i a l  t h o r o u g h l y  compacted w i t h  
s u i t a b l e  t o o l  o r  r o l l e r .  L a r g e r  a r e a s ,  which show f a i l u r e  of 
b a s e  c o u r s e  s h a l l  have a l l  u n s u i t a b l e  m a t e r i a l ,  removed and s h a l l  
b e  r e p l a c e d  w i t h  s l a g  w e l l  choked o r  b i tuminous  b i n d e r  m a t e r i a l  
a s  h e r e i n  s p e c i f i e d .  

5 . 1 4  Mixing.  

The b i tuminous  m i x t u r e  s h a l l  b e  produced  i n  an  approved  p l a n t  a s  
s p e c i f i e d  h e r e i n .  

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



(a) Preparation of Mineral Aggregate. The aggregate for the 
mixture shall be dried and heated, if necessary, before entering 
the mixer. The temperature of the aggregate at the time of 
mixing shall be the minimum as determined by the engineer, 
required for proper mixing and coating with the bituminous. 
material. At no time shall the temperature be high enough to 
drive off the volatiles necessary to maintain the mixture in 
workable condition. The aggregate shall be screened to specified 
sizes and conveyed to separate bins ready for mixing with 
bituminous materials. Additional filler, if necessary, shall be 
proportioned and added to the mineral aggregate. 

(b) Preparation of Bituminous Mixtures. The aggregate prepared 
as described above shall be accurately measured and conveyed into 
the mixer in the proportionate amounts of each aggregate required 
to meet the specified grading. The specified amount of 
bituminous material for each batch shall be introduced into the 
mixer. A sufficient interval of time shall be allowed after the 
addition of each material to secure thorough incorporating prior 
to the introduction of the next ingredient. The asphalt cement 
shall be introduced in such a manner that no segregation shall 
take place in the mixture. The aggregate and bitumen shall be 
mixed for at least thirty seconds or longer as may be necessary 
to thoroughly coat all the particles as directed by the engineer. 

(c) Mixing Temperature. The mixing temperature of any mixture 
shall be specified by the engineer according to the mix, weather 
conditions, length of haul and other job conditions existing at 
the time the mixture is to be placed. 

5.15  Transportation of Mixtures. 

The mixture shall be transported from the plant to the site in 
trucks having clean, light metal beds and rear-end dump truck 
beds may be thinly coated with soapy water or a light oil 
distillate. When so directed by the engineer, each load 
shall be covered with canvas or other suitable material of 
ample size to protect it from the weather. Deliveries of 
material shall be made so that spreading and rolling of all 
mixture can be completed during daylight. Hauling over freshly 
laid material will not be permitted. 

5 . 1 6  Placing.  

The surface area over which a hot mix bituminous wearing 
surface is to be placed shall be swept clean of all foreign 
or objectionable matter as directed by the engineer. The 
mixture shall be dumped in an approved mechanical spreader or as 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



specified. The speed of the mechanical spreader shall 
be regulated so that surface course will be smooth and of such 
depth that when compacted the course will conform to cross 
section, grade and contour required. In areas where the use of 
machine spreading is impractical, the mixture may be spread by 
hand, in which case the mixture shall be dumped on approved dump 
boards outside the area to be spread. The mixture shall be 
distributed 
into place by means of shovels spread with rakes and 
thoroughly combed in a uniformly loose layer of such 
thickness that when compacted it will conform to the required 
grade and thickness. Contact surfaces of previously 
constructed pavements shall be painted with a thin, uniform 
coat of hot asphalt cement just before mixture is placed. 

5.17 Compaction of Mixture. 

(a) Compaction shall be affected by tandem roller as specified. 
Rolling of the mixture shall begin as soon after spreading as it 
will bear a roller without undue displacement or hair cracking. 
Rolling shall start longitudinally at the extreme sides of 
the lanes and proceed toward the center of the pavement, 
overlapping on successive trips by at least one-half the width 
of the rear wheel of the roller. Alternate trips of the roller 
shall be of slightly different lengths. The mixture shall be 
subjected to diagonal rolling crossing the lines of the first. 
The motion of the roller shall at all times be slow enough to 
avoid displacement of the mixture. Any displacement of the 
mixture occurring as a result of reversing the direction of the 
roller or any other cause shall at once be corrected by the use 
of rakes and fresh mixture applied where required. Sufficient 
rollers shall be furnished to adequately handle the output of the 
plant. Rolling shall be continued until all roller marks are 
eliminated. To prevent adhesion of the mixture to the roller, 
the wheels shall be kept properly moistened, but an excess of 
water will not be permitted. The rollers shall be in good 
condition, suitable for rolling bituminous pavement and 
shall be operated by competent and experienced roller men. 
Places not accessible to the roller shall be compacted by hand 

tampers. Hand tampers shall weigh not less 
than twenty-five (25) pounds and shall have a tamping face area 
of not more than fifty (50) square inches. Skin patching on an 
area that has been rolled will not be permitted. Any mixture 
that becomes mixed with foreign material, or is in any way 
defective, shall be removed, replaced with fresh mixture, and 
compacted to the density of the surrounding area. The wearing 
Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



course or binder course shall not be opened to travel until the 
material has set to the point where it will not pick up under 
traffic. 

All "drippings", fat and lean areas and defective construction of 
any description, shall be replaced at the contractor's expense. 

Depressions which develop before the completion of the 
rolling shall be remedied by loosening the mixture lid and 
adding new mixture to bring such depressions to a true surface. 
Should any depressions remain after the final compaction has 

been obtained, the full depth of mixture shall be removed 
and replaced with sufficient new mixture to form a true and 
even surface. All high spots, high joints and honeycombs shall 
be corrected as directed by the engineer. 

Joints shall comply with the "Smoothness Tests" and present the 
same uniformity of texture, density, etc., as the other sections 
of the surface. 

5.18 Edges of Pavement. 

The outside edges of the pavement shall be trimmed neatly to line 
or gutter edge while the course is being finished. 

5.19 Smoothness Tests. 

The finished surface of the seal course shall not vary more than 
one-quarter inch (1/4") when measured by a ten foot (10') 
straight edge applied parallel with the center line. Tests for 
conformity with the specified crown and grade shall be made 
immediately after initial compression. Any variation shall be 
corrected by removing or adding materials and continuing the 
rolling. After the completion of final rolling the smoothness 
of the course shall be again checked and any 
irregularities exceeding the specified tolerances or that 
retain water on the surface shall be corrected by removing the 
defective work and replacing with new material, as directed by 
the engineer and at the expense of the contractor. An approved 
straight edge shall be furnished by the contractor for making 
these tests. 

5.20 Sampling Pavements and Mixtures. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



Suitable sized samples for the determination of thickness and 
density of the completed pavement may be removed and 
tested by the engineer. The contractor shall replace the 
pavement without cost where samples are removed. If any 
deficiency in composition, density, and thickness exceeds, the 
requirements specified herein, no payment shall be made for such 
areas of pavement and they shall be removed and replaced by the 
contractor as directed by the engineer. Only those materials 
that have been demonstrated by tests as satisfactory for the 
intended use will be acceptable. 

5 .21  Inspection of Plant and Materials .  

(a) The paving plant, plant operation and materials shall be 
inspected and tested by an independent testing laboratory 
approved by the engineer. The inspector shall represent the 
engineer at the paving plant, inspecting the plant, 
operation, verification of weights, proportion and character 
of materials, checking temperatures, and any inspection 
necessary to insure mixture being produced in accordance with 
these specifications. The cost of this inspection shall be at 
the contractor's expense and as part of the cost of furnishing 
the materials. 

(b) The testing laboratory shall furnish the engineer 
two certified copies of test reports on all materials and 
daily 
reports of plant operations and inspection. 

5 .22  Determination of Pay Quanti t ies .  

The quantities of binder course and seal course, for which 
payment will be allowed, shall be expressed in tons, and shall be 
the actual number of tons of hot laid bituminous plant mix used 
in the completed and accepted work, as verified by the plant 
inspector. When and as directed by the engineer, trucks shall be 
weighed at periodic intervals. 

5 . 2 3  Payment. 

Payment for hot laid binder course and seal course placed under 
these specifications will be made for the quantities determined 
in the manner specified above at the applicable contract 
unit price per ton as listed under Item V of the contract pay 
items. This amount, so paid, shall constitute full 
compensation for preparing or reconditioning base course 
or sub-grade and for furnishing all material, including asphalt, 
all equipment and tools and for handling, mixing, 
Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



manipulating, placing, shaping, compacting, rolling and 
finishing, improving unsatisfactory areas and furnishing all 
labor and incidentals necessary to complete the work in place. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK AND 

SUCCESSFUL BIDDER 
DATED 

THIS ADDENDUM ("thefthis Addendum") to the principal agreement between the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama ("the City") and yhe8~ontractor") datedMarch l1 201 3. 

Company, Inc . 
This Addendum is a part of the principal agreement, but supersedes and controls any 

conflicting or  inconsistent terms or  provisions in the principal agreement, particularly to the extent 
the conflicting or  inconsistent terms or  provisions purport either to (a) confer greater rights or  
remedies on the Contractor than are provided herein or  under otherwise applicable law, o r  to (b) 
reduce, restrict, o r  eliminate rights o r  remedies that would be available to the City under otherwise 
applicable law. The addendum shall remain in full force and effect with respect to any amendment, 
extension, o r  supplement of or  to the principal agreement, whether or  not expressly acknowledged 
o r  incorporated therein. No agent, employee, or  representative of the City is authorized to waive, 
modify, or  suspend the operation of the Addendum o r  any of its terms or  provisions without express 
approval of the Mountain Brook City Council. 

1. Definitions. For purposes of this Addendum, the terms below have the following meanings: 

A. "The City" refers to and illcludes the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, and its 
constituent departments, boards, and agencies. 

B. "The (thisj~~reernent" refers to the principal contract, agreement, proposal, quotation, or 
other document that sets forth the basic tenns and conditions under which the Contractor 
is engaged to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, including the payment or 
other consideration to be provided by the City in exchange therefore. 

C. "The Contractor" refers to the person, firm, or other legal entity that enters into an 
agreement with the City to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, and includes 
vendors and suppliers providing goods, materials, and services to the City with or without 
a formal contract as well as the Contractor's vendors, suppliers, and subcontractors. 

Arbitration; Mediation; Alternate Dispute Resolution. The City agrees to arbitrate disputes or to 
engage in alternate dispute resolution (ADR) if arbitration or ADR is required by the agreement as 
a means of resolving disagreements arising thereunder or is a precondition to the pursuit of other 
legal remedies, but only to the extent (1) the rights and remedies available under such arbitration 
rules or processes do not afford the Contractor greater relief (e.g., attorney's fees, damages, etc.) 
than would be available under otherwise applicable law, (2) the venue for the arbitration or 
mediation proceeding is in Jefferson County, Alabama, and (3) the costs of such proceedings 
(including the fees of the arbitrator or mediator) are divided evenly between the parties. 

3. Attorney's Fees; Court Costs; Litigarion Expenses. The City shall not be liable for attorney's 
fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and like charges except and to the extent such fees, costs, and 
charges would be assessed against the City under applicable law in the absence of any contractual 
provision imposing or assigning liability therefore. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



4. Late Payment Clrarges; Fees; Interest. The City shall not be liable for any late payment charges, 
interest, or fees on any delinquent bill for goods, materials, or services at a rate higher than two- 
thirds of one percent per month (eight percent per annum), but bills rendered to the City shall not 
be considered delinquent any earlier than thirty (30) days after rendition of a complete and 
accurate bill by the Contractor. Contested bills shall not be subject to late payment charges 
pending resolution of the dispute. 

5. Indemni~cation; Hold-Harmless; Release; Waiver; Limitations of Liability or Remedies. The 
City shall not and does not indemnify, hold harmless, or release the Contractor or any other 
person, firm, or legal entity for, from, or with respect to any claim, cause of action, cost, charge, 
fee, expense, or liability whatsoever arising out of or relating to the subject matter of the 
agreement or the performance or nonperformance thereoc nor shall or does the City waive its right 
to assert or pursue any remedy or claim for relief of any kind that it may have against the 
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity for any actual or alleged default or other breach of 
legal duty on the part of the Contractor or any person, firm, or entity in privity therewith or acting 
on Contractor's behalf Any limitation or restriction regarding the type, nature, form, amount, or 
extent of any right, remedy, relief, or recovery that would otherwise be available to the City is 
expressly disavowed, excluded from the terms of the agreement, and void. 

6. CIroice of Law; Clroice of Venue or Forum. The meaning, legal effect, and enforcement of terms 
and provisions of the agreement and the resolution of any disputes arising thereunder or relating 
thereto shall be governed by the laws of the State of Alabama except to the extent otherwise 
required by applicable conflict-of-law principles. The venue of any suit, action, or legal 
proceeding brought to enforce or secure relief by reason of any asserted breach of duty arising out 
of or relating to the performance or nonperformance of the agreement shall be Jefferson County, 
Alabama except to the extent otherwise required by applicable principles of law. 

7. Construction ofAddendum Nothing in this Addendum shall be construed to create or impose 
any duty or liability on the City, to create a right or remedy in favor of the Contractor against the 
City, or to restrict or abrogate any right or remedy that is available to the City against the 
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity under either the principal agreement or as a matter 
of law. 

8. Alabama Inrmigration Law Compliance Contract. Contractor agrees that it will hlly comply 
with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 
1990, and the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act, which makes it 
unlawful-for an employer in Alabama to knowingly hire or continue to employ an alien who is or 
has become unauthorized with respect to such employment or to fail to comply with the 1-9 
requirements or fails to use E-Verify to verify the eligibility to legally work in the United States for 
all of its new hires who are employed to work in the State of Alabama. Without limiting the 
foregoing, Contractor shall not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an 
unauthorized alien, and shall have an officer or other managerial employee who is personally 
familiar with the Contractor's hiring practices to execute an affidavit to this effect on the form 
supplied by the Board and return the same to the City. Contractor shall also enroll in the E-Verify 
Program prior to performing any work, or continuing to perform any ongoing work, and shall 
remain enrolled throughout the entire course of its performance hereunder, and shall attach to its 
affidavit the E-Verifj, Program for Employment Verification and Memorandum of Understanding 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



and such other documentation as the Board may require to confirm Contractor's enrollment in the 
E-Verify Program. Contractor agrees not to knowingly allow any of its subcontractors, or any other 
party with whom it has a contract, to employ in the State of Alabama any illegal or undocumented 
aliens to perform any work in connection with the Project, and shall include in all of its contracts a 
provision substantially similar to this paragraph. If Contractor receives actual knowledge of the 
unauthorized status of one of its employees in the State of Alabama, it will remove that employee 
from the project, jobsite or premises of the City and shall comply with the Immigration Reform 
and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 1990, and the Beason-Hammon 
Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act. Contractor shall require each of its subcontractors, 
or other parties with whom it has a contract, to act in a similar fashion. If Contractor violates any 
term of this provision, this Agreement will be subject to immediate termination by the City. To the 
fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City 
from any and all losses, consequential damages, expenses (including, but not limited to, attorneys' 
fees), claims, suits, liabilities, fines, penalties, and any other costs arising out of or in any way 
related to Contractor's failure to fulfill its obligations contained in this paragraph. 

DATED this day of ,2013. 

Dunn Construction Company,Inc. 

By: 

Its: 

City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 

By: 

Its: 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



NOTICE 
To: CONTRACTORS AND GRANTEES 
FROM: THE ClTY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 
AlTN: STEVEN BOONE 
P. 0. BOX 130009, MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 35213-02009 
RE: H.B. 56 -ALABAMA IMMIGRATION LAW COMPLIANCE 
The purpose of this Memorandum is to alert you to the Alabama lmmigration Law Compliance flow-down 
requirements that became effective on January 1,2012. Those are discussed herein and can be summarized as follows: 
1. PROVIDE The City of Mountain Brook ("the City") documentation supporting your compliance with the 
immigration law by timely submitting a notarized Affidavit of Alabama lmmigration Compliance by a Business 
Entity/Employer/Contractor to a Political Subdivision of the State of Alabama and an E-Verify Memorandum of 
Understanding; 
2. PROVIDE the City a signed Alabama lmmigration Law Compliance Contract in the attached Notice form provided; 
3. PROVIDE your subcontractors notice of their compliance obligations and OBTAIN from each a notarized Affidavit 
of Alabama lmmigration Compliance by a Subcontractor. 
The requirements above, imposed by HB 56, are "a condition for the award of any contract, grant, or incentive by 
the State of Alabama, any political subdivision thereof, or any state-funded entity to a business entity or employer that 
employs one or more employees [working in the State of Alabama]."lAs a Contractorzor a Grantee, if you believe these 
obligations do not apply to  you, please notify the City immediately. 
For your convenience, we have included for your use a sample AFFIDAVIT OF ALABAMA IMMIGRATION COMPLIANCE 
BY A BUSINESS ENTITY/EMPLOYER/CONTRACTOR TO APOLITICALSUBDIVISION OF THE STATE OF ALABAMA. Please 
complete, 
notarize, and return a copy to The Ci ty  of Mountain Brook along with your attached E-VERIFY MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING. See ALA. CODE § 31-13-9 (c). 
You are also required to obtain from your subcontractors a notarized AFFIDAVIT OF IMMIGRATION COMPLIANCE BY A 
SUBCONTRACTOR. A careful review of the broad definition below of the term "Contractor" in the Act will assist you in 
deciding to 
whom to provide notice. 
If you contract with more than one local government, you will only need to have one affidavit completed and notarized, 
and then provide a copy to the requesting governmental entities. You are required to maintain your subcontractors' 
affidavits at 
your offices. These documents will be subject to audit. You may provide a copy of this Memorandum with your 
notification 
memorandum to your subcontractors as an explanation for this mandatory requirement. 
Finally, you will find a NOTICE OF ALABAMA IMMIGRATION LAW COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS TO ALL CONTRACTORS 
OF THE ClTY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA ("ALABAMA IMMIGRATION COMPLIANCE CONTRACr") for execution by 
contractors and to be returned to the City of Mountain Brook. To the extent that there is no formal written contract 
between a 
contractor and the City (e.g., where business is conducted by purchase order), this document shall serve as your 
Alabama 
lmmigration Compliance Contract. Similar language shall also be included in all future contracts and agreements 
executed with the 
City of Mountain Brook. 
1 AM. CODE 5 31-13-9 (a) and (b). See hnp://www.ago.state.al.udfile-lmmigration-AL-w-2011-535. The law is now codified in ALA. CODE $5 
31-13-1 to 31-1330 as well as 5 32-6-9 (the "Act"). 
zA Contractor is defined broadly in the Act as "A person, employer, or business entity that enters into an agreement to perform any service or 
work or 
to provide a certaln product In exchange for valuable consideration. This designation shall Include, but not be limited to, a general contractor, 
subcontractor, independent contractor, contract employee, project manager, or a recruiting or staffing entity." AM. CODE $5 32-13-3 (3). 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



AFFIDAVIT OF ALABAMA IMMIGRATION COMPLIANCE BY A 
BUSINESS ENTIN/EMPLOYER/CONTRACTOR TO A POLITICAL SUBDIVISION 
OF THE STATE OF ALABAMA 
(To be completed as ,I ondiaon for the award of any contract, grant, or incentive by the State of Alabama, any political subdivision thereof. or 
any state-f~~nded e n t i [ ,  to a business entcty) 

City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 
FORM FOR SECTIONS 9 (a) and (b) BEASON-HAMMON ALABAMA TAXPAYER AND CITIZEN PROTECTION ACT; 
CODE OF ALABAMA, SECTIONS 31-13-9 (a) and (b) 
State of 
County of 
Before me, a notary public, personally appeared (print name) who, 
being duly sworn, says as follows: 
As a condition for the award of any contract, grant, or incentive by the State of Alabama, any political 
subdivision thereof, or any state-funded entity to a business entity or employer that employs one or more 
employees, I hereby attest that in my capacity as (state position) 
for (state business 
entity/employer/contractor name) that said business entity/employer/contractor shall not knowingly 
employ, hire for employment, or continue to  employ an unauthorized alien. 
I further attest that said business entity/employer/contractor is enrolled in the E-Verify program. (AITACH A 
COPY OF YOUR ORGANIZATION'S E-VERIFY MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING TO DOCUMENT THAT THE 
BUSINESS ENTITY/EMPLOYER/CONTRACTOR IS ENROLLED IN THE E-VERIFY PROGRAM.) 
I further attest that all sub-contractors in my employment are duly enrolled in the E-Verih/ program and upon 
request can produce the appropriate forms verifying such action. 

Signature of Affiant (an Officer or Owner of Contractor) 

E-Verify User Identification Number 
Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of I 2-, 
I certify that the affiant is known (or made known) to me to be the identical party he or she claims to be. 

Signature and Seal of Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
[Seal] 
NOTICE OF ALABAMA IMMIGRATION LAW COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS TO 
ALL 
CONTRACTORS OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 
("ALABAMA IMMIGRATION COMPLIANCE CONTRACT") 
As a Contractor, as defined in the Act, to THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA ("the City"), it is critical to your 
relationship (future or continuing) with the City that you comply with the immigration Reformand Control Act of 1986, as 
amended by the lmmigration Act of 1990, and the Beason-Hammon Aiabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act. Accordingly, 
please provide your Affidavit of lmmigration Compliance with attached E-Verify Memorandum of Understanding, as requested 
in the attached memorandum. If you do not believe these obligations apply to you, please notify the City immediately. 
Effective January 1,2012, every contract entered into by the City a contractor will contain the following clause or one 
substantially similar: 
Alabama lmmigration Law Compliance Contract: Contractor agrees that it will fully comply with the 
immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the lmmigration Act of 1990, and the Beason- 
Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act, which makes it unlawful for an employer In 
Alabama to knowingly hire or continue to employ an alien who is or has become unauthorized with respect 
to such employment or to fail to comply with the 1-9 requirements or fails to use E-Verify to verify the 
eligibility to legally work in the United States for all of its new hires who are employed to work in the State 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McCIendon 205 802-3 875 



of Alabama. Without limiting the foregoing, Contractor shall not knowingly employ, hire for employment, 
or continue to employ an unauthorized alien, and shall have an officer or other managerial employee who is 
personally familiar with the Contractor's hiring practices to execute an affidavit to this effect on the form 
supplied by the Board and return the same to the City. Contractor shall also enroll in the E-Verify Program 
prior to performing any work, or continuing to perform any ongoing work, and shall remain enrolled 
throughout the entire course of its performance hereunder, and shall attach to its affidavit the E-Verify 
Program for Employment Verification and Memorandum of Understanding and such other documentation 
as the Board may require to confirm Contractor's enrollment in the E-Verify Program. Contractor agrees 
notto knowingly allow any of Itssubcontractors, or any other party with whom it has a contract, to employ 
in the State of Alabama any illegal or undocumented aliens to perform any work in connection with the 
Project, and shall include in all of its contracts a provision substantially similar to this paragraph. if 
Contractor receives actual knowledge of the unauthorized status of one of its employees in the State of 
Alabama, it will remove that employee from the project, jobsite or premises of the City and shall comply 
with the immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 1990, and the 
Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act. Contractor shall require each of its 
subcontractors, or other parties with whom it has a contract, to act in a similar fashion. if Contractor 
violates any term of this provislon, this Agreement will be subject to immediate termination by the City. To 
the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shali defend, Indemnify and hold harmless the City from any 
and all losses, consequential damages, expenses (including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees), claims, suits, 
liabilities, fines, penalties, and any other costs arising out of or in any way related to Contractor's failure to 
fulfill its obligations contained in this paragraph. 
To the extent that there is no formal written contract between the City and the Contractor (e.g., where business Is 
conducted by purchase order), this document shall serve as the Alabama Immigration Compliance Contract. 
Alabama Immigration Law Compliance Contract Notice Acknowledged and Agreed by Contractor whose 
name 
appears below: 

Contractor Officer or Owner Signature/Date 

Print Name/Title/Company 
Please execute ancl return to  THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA within the next 10 days. 
I n c o r p o r a t e d  
i n t o  c o n t r a c t  
addendum. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



AFFIDAVIT OF ALABAMA IMMIGRATION COMPLIANCE BY A 
SUBCONTRACTOR TO A POLlTClAL SUBDIVISION 
OF THE STATE OF ALABAMA 
{To be completed as 3 condition for the award of any [sub]contract, grant, or incentive by the State of Alabama, any political subdivision 
rhereoi, or ally state-funded entity to  a bus~ness entity. TO BE RETURNED TO THE CONTRAUOR OR GRANTEE OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN 
BROOK, ALABAMA) 

City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 
FORM FOR SECTIONS 9 (a) and (b) BEASON-HAMMON ALABAMA TAXPAYER AND CITIZEN PROTECTION ACT; 
CODE OF ALABAMA, SECTIONS 31-13-9 (a) and (b) 
State of 
County of 
Before me, a notary public, personally appeared - (print name) who, 
being duly sworn, says as follows: 
As a condition for the award of any [sub]contract, [sublgrant, or incentive by the State of Alabama, any 
political subdivision thereof, or any state-funded entity to a business entity or employer that employs one or 
more employees, I hereby attest that in my capacity as (state 
position) for (state business 
entity/employer/contractor name) that said business entity/employer/[sub]contractor shall not knowingly 
employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien. 
I further attest that said business entity/employer/contractor is enrolled in the E-Verify program. (ATTACH A 

COPY OF YOUR ORGANIZATION'S E-VERIFY MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING TO DOCUMENTTHAT THE 
BUSINESS ENTlTY/EMPLOYER/[SUB]CONTRACTOR IS ENROLLED IN THE E-VERIFY PROGRAM.) 
I further attest that all sub-contractors in my employment are duly enrolled in the €-Verify program and upon 
request can produce the appropriate forms verifying such action. 

Signature of Affiant (an Officer or Owner of [SubIContractor) 

E-Verify User Identification Number 
Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of r 2-e 
I certify that the affiant is known (or made known) to me to be the identical party he or she claims to be. 

Signature and Seal of Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
[Seal] 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205 802-3875 



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-045 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that 
the City Council hereby authorizes a $340 change order to the Alscan, Inc. contract (Resolution 
2012-044 dated March 26,2012) for the purchase of a pedestal mount for the garage access card 
reader. 

ADOPTED: This 1 1 th day of March, 20 13. 

Virginia C. Smith, Council President 

APPROVED: This 1 1 th day of March, 20 13. 

Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on March 11,2013, as same appears in the minutes of 
record of said meeting. 

Steven Boone, City Clerk 

Alscan Change Order (Pedestal Mount) 



February 25,2013 

Steve Boone 
City of Mountain Brook 
802-3825 

Steve, 

The following price of $340.00 is for the addition of a pedestal mount for the card reader 
leading into the parking deck. The original RFP# 16 had Taylor Miree providing the pedestal. 

Alscan requests a response no later than 10 days. 

Daniel Tourtellotte 
Alscan, Inc. 



BRASFIELD 
GORRIE 
GENERALEONTRACTORS 

Request for Information Alscan0003 

Detailed RFls Gmuped by RFI Number 

-- - 
Mtn Brook Municipal Complex Brasfield & Gonie U C  
56 Church Street. Mountain Brook AL. 35213 Project 0 1 0 3 1 2 ~ ~  
Tel: 205-879-7770 Fax 205874-7771 

#ubmi& 6: ~ O m i ! :  h b m ~ d  & liIcm#: 
Wliams Blackstock Archnects PC Marc Fugn~tio Alscan lnc Dan Tourteilotte 
2204 First Avenue South Suite 200 237 Oxmoor Circle Sune 101 
Birmingham, AL 35233 Btnlngham, AL 35209 

swP 
RFP 01 6 Questions 

~n ~ n d & & I ~ e f t  ~kT&sd.P-42 
On the above Request for Proposal, there is a request to add a reader, pedestal, and adapter. 
1) \FJho is to provide the pedestal? The eledrical contractor is to provide all of the condud 
2) Also, the 206-6 is not a valid number from Engineered Parking Systems. Do you mean 30681 
3) Is the pedestal to be mounted on a island (4' height) or at street level. 

is correct, we apologize for the typo. 
3. The pedestal will be mounted on an Island. The curb IS actually 6". 



MODEL 306-6 

These pedestals are typically used to install card readers or intercoms at drive-up 
and pedestrian access points. Made of 2" X 4" rectangular steel tubing with a 6" 
X 6" mounting plate and 8 X 8" base plate. A steel base plate cover is provided 
to conceal the mounting hardware. Housings and adapters are available for 
these pedestals to accommodate most access control devices such as card 
readers and intercoms. 

HEIGHT TO CENTER OF MOUNTING PLATE: 36" 
ARM EXTENSION: 9" 
MATERIAL: 2" x 4" Rectangular steel tubing 
FINISH: White, Black or Beige Powder Coat 

lw- 
EPS 

ENGINEERED PARKING SYSTEMS 
25010 AVENUE TIBBITTS, VALENCIA, CA 91355 
PHONE (661) 294-0778 (800) EPSINFO (3774636) FAX (661) 294-0674 
www.epsinfo.com 



PUNCH FOR '4s 
BOLT 4 PIACES 

1.50 DIA. 

END PLATE 

... .. 

. . . . 
8 0 
8 0 0 .  

8 :  
0 I 

. 0 
I 0  

RASE PUT€ 
aBD 

I I 
I 

IT 

END PLATE 

BASE PLATE 

MODEL 306-6 PEDESTAL GENERAL DIMENSIONS 

ENGINEERED PARKING SYSTEMS 

EPS 2501 0 AVENUE TIBBITTS, VALENCIA, CA 91 355 
PHONE (661) 294-0778 (800) EPSINFO (377-4636) FAX (661) 294-0674 
www.epsinfo.com 



RESOLUTION 2013-046 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that it 
hereby accepts the dedication of twenty (20) feet of right of way along part of Pine Ridge Road, 
specifically as shown on the attached Thompson's Addition to Pine Ridge Record Plat (attached 
as Exhibit A and made a part hereof) as "20.00' ROW DEDICATED BY THIS PLAT." The 
Record Plat by which such dedicated right of way was identified and offered for dedication was 
further approved by the Planning Commission of the City of Mountain Brook by affirmative vote 
on March 4,2013. 

ADOPTED: This 1 1 th day of March, 20 13 

Virginia Smith, Council President 

APPROVED: This 1 1 th day of March, 20 13. 

Lawrence T.Oden, Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on March 11,201 3 as same appears in the minutes of 
record of said meeting. 

Steven Boone, City Clerk 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

Dana 0. Hazen, AICP 
City Planner 
3928 Montclair Road, Suite 230 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213-0009 
Telephone: 205/802-3805 
Fax: 205.879.6913 
hazendQmtnbrook.org 
www.mtnbrook.org 

DATE: March 7,2013 

TO: Mayor, City Council 
City Manager 
City Attorney 

FROM: Dana Hazen, City Planner 

RE: Amendment to Lane Parke PUD 

Petition Summary 
Request to amend the Lane Parke Planned Unit Development (PUD) master development plan to allow 
the ground floor elevation of portions of the residential component to be 1 - 112 - 4 feet lower than 
approved by Ordinance 187 1 in May of 20 12. 

Analysis 
The approved PUD requires that the first floor finished floor elevation of all of the buildings in the 
residential component be 1-112 to 4 feet above finished grade. The plans that have been submitted for 
permits show the finished floor elevations for buildings 3 ,4  and 5 to be approximately 6 inches above 
finished grade. Also, the leasing office for the residential component (which is located in the southwest 
corner of building 1) is at grade in order to comply with ADA requirements for the leasing portion of 
that building. 

At their meeting of March 4,201 3, the Planning Commission voted to recommend approval of the 
proposed amendment to the PUD. 

The VDR committee has reviewed the proposed change and is in favor of the change from a design 
standpoint. 

The Building Superintendent has reviewed the plans and has indicated that this proposed change in no 
way effects the floodwaylfloodplain or FEMA approvalslprojects. 





ORDINANCE NO. 1885 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND LANE PARKE DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN PREVIOUSLY APPROVED BY ORDINANCE 1871 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, as 
follows: 

1. Develovment Standards. The Master Development Plan and the materials submitted by the 
applicant, as required by Section 129-265 of the Mountain Brook City Code, as approved upon the adoption of 
Ordinance 1871 dated May 21, 2012 are hereby amended to include the changes specified in Exhibit A 
attached hereto. 

2. Descrivtion of Affected Provertv. The property that is the subject of the rezoning approved by this 
ordinance is described as follows: 

A parcel of land being situated in the Northeast quarter of the Northwest quarter and the Southeast 
quarter of the Northwest quarter of Section 8, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, more particularly 
described as follows: 

Begin at the Southwest Comer of the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 8, 
Township 18 South, Range 2 West; being the Point of Beginning; thence run Northerly along the West 
line of said Quarter - Quarter a distance of 665.12 feet; thence right 91"-08'-04" a distance of 1325.11 
feet; thence right 88"-58'-55" a distance of 74.22 feet; thence right 37"-49'-05" a distance of 736.41 
feet; thence right 52"-46'-30" a distance of 62.37 feet; thence right 00"-14'-22" a distance of 179.92 
feet; thence left 90"-58'-32" a distance of 355.39 feet; thence right 88"-43'-29" a distance of 24.53 
feet; thence left 87"-29'-35" a distance of 139.13 feet; thence right 89"-27'-49" a distance of 14.61 
feet; thence left 1 17"-30'-00" a distance of 175.92 feet; thence right 84"-32'-17" a distance of 46.85 
feet; thence tangent to a curve to the left having a radius of 1243.26 feet and a central angle of 9"-20'- 
05" along the curve an arc distance of 202.55 feet; thence right 62"-49'-52" from the tangent of said 
curve a distance of 329.33 feet; thence tangent to a curve to the left having a central angle of 18"-00'- 
5 0  and a radius of 66.12 feet an arc distance of 20.79 feet; thence left 2°-03'-01'y to the tangent of a 
curve to the left having a central angle of 34"-34'-36" and a radius of 60.77 feet, an arc distance of 
36.67 feet; thence continue from the tangent of said curve a distance of 45.64 feet; thence right 90"- 
00'-00" a distance of 1 19.49 feet; thence right 33"-25'-36" a distance of 245.11 feet; thence right O0- 
00'-42" a distance of 377.82 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

Said Parcel contains 27.59 acres more or less. 

3. Revealer. All ordinances or parts of ordinances heretofore adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama that are inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby expressly 
repealed. 

4. Severabilitv. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held unconstitutional or 
invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the remainder of this 
ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding such holding. 

5. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption and publication as 
provided by law. 



ADOPTED: This 1 1 th day of March, 2013. 

Virginia C. Smith, Council President 

APPROVED: This 1 1 th day of March, 2013. 

Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the above to be a 
true and correct copy of an ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, as 
its meeting held on March 11,2013, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting, and published 
by posting copies thereof on M a r c h ,  2013, at the following public places, which copies remained posted 
for five (5) days as required by law. 

City Hall, 3928 Montevallo Road, Ste. 138 
Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2850 Cahaba Road 
Piggly Wiggly Foodstore 4,93 Euclid Avenue 
Joe MuggsNogurt Mountain, 2037 Cahaba Road 
The Invitation Place, 3 150 Overton Road 

Steven Boone, City Clerk 



EXHIBIT A 

-F=W 
On tk f.n hondmg dr pinuq nna, kmdter arlM dr 'b 
hok-, Ibc h , 1 0 7  &dl have a m r u p u c q  of 15% to 40% of tk - 
£ 4 .  
O n r b e P r l n v r y R c r k , d ~ ~ l t v l l h r u . s c ~ ~ o f  
1 5 9 6 r o 4 % o f c k k d e  
B . y r ~ d h . b o n h ~ ~ d u p t o Z ' ~ ~ I b c h o m h r l l d i ~  
h o n ~ p p . t ~ k ~ d . h r l l m d a & u m o f 3 ' . a d s d m u m  
of Z'horn tk bunding hprdr 
t c h b d d i n 6 . t u l l h a v e a c h o n ~ d P r f m u p ~ ~  

PLUW Roofnbdm6 
I$r build+ h d a g  on k Cmm S d  d c r  Main S m e ~  
g m u J  floor clmrlon I. mgdmd c br 1.5' lo  4' oborc gode at h o n  
b u l l d i  Un (Yculag. otke in msidcalrl mmpo.rnt crdudrd) 
Tlo storr bulldlna rkb  a ptrcbcd mofdvll bm a w t m u m  ~ornial 

ems hi& of46'rirb r &mum bzdlag kfgtn of66 
A m p r . b l c r m f p k d 3 ~ I . ~ 1 Z t 0 1 + 1 2  
P i t ~ d m o 6 m u n w t ~ a d m o m & n 2 0 ' ~ o * c t k a u a r  
add r d ~ x r u a s  mq comdn .ddhiplVl IOOr am. 4 ) C h  mzy be 
o ~ c v ~ r c d  rlrhavr c.unline t a u &  & nor. f o r  auras d 
rbe h s .  pr& amy ddkiod'floor a m  h w t b  
d . r rc~~ur  to tk Boor ace. of lk InMw .mm In cbh d t l o n .  

lo  krr a mmlodens 11- d b t h a  from Ibc rop d& fanpr. 

U1 roofiop squPmclv lbJl W rkbln thr pnnLdbL r m f  k@a 
be b e d  Scm s k p  or rrm + to & ~ b l k  .an. 4d 
a k r r t e  be rmerud fmm v i m  frvm dj=t gvblk mm or be 
h o r p o ~ d  ino tk .LLm of& bd&g or Inad m t k  bk& 

a, Rh,th, 
DIBcnnhd b y  hnJd be exp-rd M c a d  ha of  a buUding or 
rddmr1.l lplcc dim+ b a i n g  a public rpax or tr- 

hpltvllbr r mirrimumof2S d a n u l i m u m  of50'rikanPthmy 
Froa-s On my a dul L vidble hDm publlc ri&t dray  &I 
i.dl+dpocmmaaaceadPrfmnr).Fmn~otkutaaebqrlbJl 
be udollned on I&-- djva. to & Pdmary W. h &tne 

f ~ s ~ a u 6 0 ' i . k n g d * d l e , m r m a h n r & ~ " d ~ .  
n r b u + o r p U M a b r a r h a u n C o f & b l b i a d o n t o t h c  
6m h y  djaulv to tk hhq Rode 



EXHIBIT A 

A S M I X O i m  .MARCH 11 9 1 3  

6aNUNL OF THE PAST LCPXING TOTHE r W R E  35 


	March 11 Agenda
	1. Feb 25 Minutes
	2. Conditional Use-Veterinary/Animal Grooming
	3. Waste Management Contract
	4. Street [Re] Paving Bid Award
	5. Alscan Change Order
	6. Right-of-Way Addition
	7. PUD Ordinance/Lane Parke

